LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF MANITOBA
Thursday, 21 May, 1987.

Time — 1:30 p.m.
OPENING PRAYER by Madam Speaker.

MADAM SPEAKER, Hon. M. Phillips: Presenting
Petitions . . . Reading and Receiving Petitions . . .
Presenting Reports by Standing and Special
Committees . . .

MINISTERIAL STATEMENTS
AND TABLING OF REPORTS

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of
Health.

HON.L.DESJARDINS: Madam Speaker, | wish to invite
members of the Legislature to join me at a breakfast
conference at 8:00 a.m. on Tuesday, June 2, 1987, at
the Holiday Inn downtown to hear a message of
importance to all of us.

Our hosts will be Transplant International (Canada),
a lay organization formed two years ago to promote
public awareness of the increasing need for organ
donations.

Vital organ transplants are now accepted therapy for
certain types of organ failure. The federal-provincial
working group on organ transplant centres, which has
been meeting for the past three years, has suggested
that Winnipeg become a transplant centre to serve
Manitoba and Saskatchewan. The group reports that
Canada already spends $8 million annually on
transplants for Canadians in other countries, principally
in the United States.

We are at present studying the working group’s report
through a committee composed of representatives of
the teaching hospitals, the university, the Manitoba
Health Services Commission, and Dr. J. Barwinsky,
Director of Manitoba’s Cardiac Program, is chairman
of the committee.

Next week, we will be bringing First Reading of The
Human Tissue Act. | am confident that all members
will be supportive of this timely and progressive piece
of legislation.

But, before we can consider expanding our role and
becoming a vital organ transplant centre, we must
cooperate with other provinces in the development of
a successful organ procurement program. Although the
number of Canadians donating organs increased by
13 percent in 1985, in Manitoba the increase was 54
percent. There are still 2,500 Canadians waiting for
kidneys. If only 50 percent of potential donors gave
their organs, there would be enough to go around.

Madam Speaker, | am urging members of this
Legislature to attend this breakfast meeting to hear
reports from physicians, from vital organ recipients,
and from the families of donors and, having heard, to
become role models by signing organ donor cards, and
by using their influence to urge others to do so.

Thank you, Madam Speaker.

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for River
East.

MRS. B. MITCHELSON: Thank you, Madam Speaker.

I'd like to thank the Minister of Health for this
statement and urge all members of the Legislature to
attend this conference next Tuesday.

| want to say that I'm very aware of how important
an organ transplant program is, and I'd like to indicate
to the House that | was fortunate to be, in my capacity
as a registered nurse working at the Health Sciences
Centre, a part of the kidney transplant team when the
first kidney transplant was done, and looked after that
first recipient here in Manitoba. It was a very rewarding
experience, and we look forward to participating next
week in the conference.

Thank you.

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of
Municipal Affairs.

HON. J. BUCKLASCHUK: Thank you, Madam Speaker.
| beg leave to table the Annual Report for 1985-86
for the Department of Municipal Affairs.

MADAM SPEAKER: Notices of Motion . . .
INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

HON. R. PENNER introduced, by leave, Bill No. 38, An
Act to amend The Law Society Act; Loi modifiant la
Loi sur la Société du Barreau.

INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

MADAM SPEAKER: Before moving to Oral Questions,
may | direct the attention of honourable members to
the gallery, where we have 14 students from Grade 8
from the Laporte School under the direction of Mr. Bob
Evenmo and Miss Kathy Sparre. The school is located
in Laporte, Minnesota, in the United States of America.

On behalf of all the members, we welcome you to
the Legislature this afternoon.

ORAL QUESTIONS
MTX - $20 million loss

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Leader of the
Opposition.

MR. G. FILMON: Thank you, Madam Speaker. My
question is to the Minister responsible for the Manitoba
Telephone System.

In view of the fact that at committee this morning
we were told that the reason that MTX could not collect
on the $12 million of receivables that SADL, Saudi
Arabia Datacom Ltd., had from Sheik Al Bassam'’s
company, Datacom, was because MT X personnel had
been totally involved in the operation and in fact were
responsible for the operation of Datacom, the sheik’s
company, sales, business transactions and so on; and
in view of the fact that Mr. Curtis, the acting CEO of
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MTX, said that he didn’t believe and there was no
evidence to indicate that Sheik Al Bassam had himself
benefited from any of the operations of SADL or
Datacom, hadn’t benefited financially, hadn’t in fact
made money; and in view of the fact that we have
written off some $20 million of losses in this scandalous
Saudi Arabian misadventure, where did the money go?

MADAM SPEAKER:
responsible for MTS.

The Honourable Minister

HON. G. DOER: Madam Speaker, | would hope that
the Member for Tuxedo, the Leader of the Opposition,
would read the Coopers and Lybrand Report, which
was produced to the committee this morning. Coopers
and Lybrand, on November 21, when the first report
was made public, indicated major losses in three of
the projects, or two of the Saudi Arabian projects, major
losses of money, and the Cezar Industry projects. I'm
pleased we have a negotiated settlement out of those
two bad deals; we have said that they are bad deals.

We are pleased that Mr. Curtis, with the assistance
of Coopers and Lybrand, have assessed the situation,
have assessed the assets, have assessed the legal
situation, and have come to an agreement that they
have recommended to us and that we have supported
in terms of getting out of those bad deals for the
Telephone System of Manitoba.

MR. G. FLMON: Madam Speaker, | regret that the
Minister hasn’t answered my question. What I'm saying
to him is that we have lost $20 million. At committee
today, we were told that this did not benefit the sheik
in any way and, in fact, that we couldn’t collect on
receivables from the sheik’s company because it was
our personnel at MTX who had totally run those
operations overseas, including his company, Datacom
Division of Al Bassam International. Madam Speaker,
my question is that there was indeed $20 million lost
in that whole operation. How did the losses occur, and
who was responsible for those losses?

HON. G. DOER: Madam Speaker, today in committee,
the critic for the Telephone System asked the same
question of Mr. Curtis, and he gave an answer to the
committee that he had assessed the situation and he
had identified what assets were left in Saudi Arabia.
He had access to the books that the members opposite
said that he wouldn’t have. He had assessed the
situation with the books, with the assets, with the MTX
situation and there were, in fact, losses in Saudi Arabia.

Madam Speaker, we have said publicly, in February,
that we will potentially lose $27.4 million; in fact, the
Member for Pembina has stated it's going to be $30
million or $32 million. The settlements achieved are
within the amount of money that we have publicly said
will be lost in MTX, as identified by Coopers and
Lybrand, and identified by Arthur Andersen.

Madam Speaker, we have said publicly that the Saudi
Arabian situation was a bad deal and the Coopers and
Lybrand, assessing the bad deal and assessing the
situation with Mr. Curtis, have recommended the
settlement that was provided to the House and to the
committee of the Legislature this morning.

MR. G. FILMON: Madam Speaker, Mr. Curtis did indeed
indicate that he assessed the assets and he valued the

assets as of the current time, as of last fall. He did
indeed indicate that there was no money available,
Madam Speaker, but he did not indicate where did this
$20 million end up. Whose pockets were lined? Who
benefited? How did the $20 million happen to be lost?
What happened to it?

HON. G. DOER: Madam Speaker, the issue of potential
criminal wrongdoing is being investigated by the RCMP.
We said this morning that we would prefer that the
RCMP move quicker. We would prefer that the issue
of the potential criminal wrongdoing be concluded, to
address the potential criminal wrongdoing.

Madam Speaker, we would have liked the RCMP to
have completed an investigation, just like I'm sure, Mr.
Mulroney would prefer that Andre Bissonnette’s
investigation would be completed by now, in terms of
lining his pockets.

We would like to know but, Madam Speaker, we do
not control the speed and the time of the RCMP
investigation and we are awaiting their report.

MR. G. FILMON: Madam Speaker, Mr. Curtis indicated
that he is satisfied that the sheik did not benefit. He
is satisfied that all of the responsibility centered on the
MT X personnel, and the MT X operation over there.
My questionis, those are people under the jurisdiction
of this Minister - can he not tell us where that money
ended up being squandered, and who might have
benefited, and what happened to the $20 million?

MADAM SPEAKER: That question is repetitious.

I T and T - change of thrust to
overcome foreign deficit

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for
Portage la Prairie.

MR. E. CONNERY: Thank you, Madam Speaker. My
question is to the Acting Minister of Industry, Trade
and Technology.

Madam Speaker, on Tuesday in Estimates, | was
appalled to view a Minister in total disarray and out
of touch with his department. Madam Speaker, we are
one of only three provinces that has a foreign trade
deficit, a deficit in excess of $1 billion and, if we leave
out grain sales, that is our debt. Is the Minister . . .

MADAM SPEAKER: Does the honourable member
have a question?

MR. E. CONNERY: Yes, I've got to let him know what’s
coming up. Would the Acting Minister suggest to the
Minister changing the strategic thrust of his department
to overcome those unacceptable and devastating
deficits? And | might add, Madam Speaker, that this
sector deficit has doubled since 1983.

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of
Energy and Mines.

HON. W. PARASUK: Madam Speaker, in answer to
that speech, | would indicate, although | was not at the
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Estimates review, | can be assured however on the
basis of past performance, that the Minister of Industry,
Trade and Technology was not in disarray. He probably
handled the Member for Portage excellently, which is
why he’s asking the question today, rather than asking
it in Estimates when he could have asked it, or asking
it when the Minister is actually here.

| will certainly take the question as notice but, Madam
Speaker, let the record show that all the economic
indicators for Manitoba indicate that our performance
is excellent versus Conservative provinces like
Saskatchewan.

MADAM SPEAKER: Order please, order please.
May | remind all honourable members that question
period is not a time for debate.

Manufacturing sector -
restoration of lost jobs

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for
Portage la Prairie with a supplementary.

MR. E. CONNERY: | have a new question, Madam
Speaker, to the same Acting Minister.

Madam Speaker, we have lost 13,000 jobs in the
manufacturing sector since 1981. In 1985, we had a
trade deficit in end products (inedible) of over $1.6
billion . . .

MADAM SPEAKER: Order please.

Does the honourable member have a question? May
| remind the honourable member that questions are
not to be speeches, however brief, and question period
is a time for obtaining information, not giving it?

The Honourable Member for Portage la Prairie, with
a question!

MR. E. CONNERY: Madam Speaker, my question to
the Acting Minister is: Would he suggest some changes
to the Minister, so that we can restore these jobs in
Manitoba, so that when Limestone, North Portage
Development and the Core area have all run out, we
won’t be in a wilderness out looking for jobs, 13,000
jobs that we’ve lost in manufacturing?

HON. W. PARASIUK: Madam Speaker, I'll certainly refer
the Minister of Industry Trade and Technology to the
comments of the Member for Portage, but he should
remember back to the period 1977-1981 when this
province was in disarray under Conservative leadership,
when we went from a position of being one of the
leading economies in the country in 1975-76-77 and,
when that motley crew took over, we went to the last
position in the country. We would not want to go back
the Conservative ways and be No. 10; we want to follow
New Democratic Party Government ways and be No.
1, Madam Speaker.

Inter-City Gas - purchase from Alberta
for large customers

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for
Kildonan.

MR. M. DOLIN: Thank you, Madam Speaker. My
question is to the Minister of Enery and Mines.

A recent report has it that Inter-City Gas has told
its large customers and suggested to them that they
can purchase their gas directly from Alberta or suppliers
in Alberta. I'm wondering, is there a position on the
part of the ministry on this. What effect will this have
on rates?

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of
Energy and Mines.

HON. W. PARASIUK: Madam Speaker, we have
indicated that we want all people to have the opportunity
of getting fairer and lower gas prices, and large users
of natural gas have indeed the opportunity of going
out and directly purchasing natural gas in Alberta or
other provinces, and getting that natural gas at rates
that are significantly lower than the rates that are
presently being offered. They would be in the order
probably of $1.75 or $1.80; these are significantly lower
rates. We believe that is good for Manitoba if those
people do have an opportunity of getting lower rates,
Madam Speaker, and we want to ensure that the system
operates in such a way that those people have the
opportunity of getting fairer and lower gas prices.

Inter-City Gas - opportunity
for small users

MR. M. DOLIN: Madam Speaker, as a residential
homeowner, | am paying considerably more than that.
I’'m wondering will | have the same opportunity as the
large suppliers to go and get my gas at a reasonable
rate from Alberta directly.

HON. W. PARASIUK: Madam Speaker, that's an
excellent question because that is the heart of the
problem facing the whole natural gas system in this
country. Large users may have the opportunity of getting
cheaper gas. The way this system is structured right
now, small residential users don’t. There are some
200,000 consumers of natural gas in Manitoba; 199,900-
plus aren’t the large users. They're residential families,
families and households, small businessmen,
commercial operators, Madam Speaker, and those
people should have the same opportunity of getting
fair and cheap natural gas as any large user. It is the
position of this government that we will reform the
system to ensure that that takes place.

Esprit Vacations Limited -
local complaints

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for Riel.

MR. G. DUCHARME: Thank you, Madam Speaker, to
the Minister responsible for Consumer and Corporate
Affairs. -

In consideration of the collapse of the Toronto-based
Esprit Vacations Limited, filed bankruptcy last week,
doing travel business to the tune of approximately $25
million, specializing in European coach and ski holidays,
as well as the exclusive Canadian sales agents for
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Madam Speaker, there are five options presented to
farmers in which to achieve the interest rate reduction.
There are a number of choices that are presented in
the letters there. As | said during the Estimates, Madam
Speaker, depending on the length of the loan, length
of repayment time that is still remaining on the
mortgage, will determine the amount of benefit or no
benefit to farmers, depending which of those options
they choose.

Madam Speaker, a reduction from 13 percent to 8
percent, in terms of that total amount, is a 5 percent
interest rate reduction. In fact, one of the press people
yesterday asked me about some of the samples. |
provided examples - in fact, | can provide it for my
honourable friends - examples of - and I’'m going from
memory - an $88,000 loan, a reduction of some,
between $60,000 and $70,000 of reduction in interest
payments over the life of that loan.

But, as | said in Estimates, it depends on the interest
rate paid, the length of mortgage left to be repaid, will
be the amount of benefit that a farmer will gain, and
not as the honourable member tries to portray.

MR. G. FINDLAY: Madam Speaker, given that for all
five options the producer is paying more in 1987 than
1986; given that, Madam Speaker, there is a 21 percent
reduction in net realized income for farmers of
Manitoba, how does the Minister expect farmers to
come up with this additional money in these hard times,
in order to achieve this 8 percent interest which the
government is contributing absolutely nothing to in
terms of dollars.

HON. B. URUSKI: Madam Speaker, that assertion is
inaccurate. If a farmer wishes to put all the cash and
to achieve the entire savings then that would be a cash
outlay. Madam Speaker, we have not asked any farmer
that they put up all the cash. If a farmer is in that great
financial shape that he can put up the cash, all the
greater benefit to him. But we have also recognized in
the program, Madam Speaker, that all farmers do not
have the cash.

There are four other options in which farmers can
choose, Madam Speaker, and the reduction in payments
from Year One, if they do not pay cash, is an absolute
reduction in payments other than the cash payment.

Meech Lake accord - effect of
agreement on principles
of Native self-government

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for River
Heights.

MRS. S. CARSTAIRS: Thank you, Madam Speaker.
My question, Madam Speaker, is to the Minister
responsible . . .

SOME HONOURABLE MEMBERS: Oh, oh!

MADAM SPEAKER: Order please.
The Honourable Member for River Heights has the
floor.

MRS. S. CARSTAIRS: Thank you, Madam Speaker.

My question is to the Minister responsible for Native
Affairs. Since the Meech Lake accord the nation has
been deliberating the meaning and the implications of
this agreement, and | would like to ask the Minister,
since it will be of such grave concern on such
constitutional matters as those of Native self-
government, if the Minister of Northern Affairs has been
in touch with leaders of the Native communities of this
province regarding the accord and its potential effect
on the principle of self-government?

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of
Northern Affairs.

HON. E. HARPER: Well, | thank that member for that
question.

| have discussed this with my staff, the senior Native
advisor, the director of Native secretariat, to discuss
the issue on the matter of self-government and the
Meech Lake accord, and also possibly this being a
discussion with the First Ministers at a future meeting,
and also this was brought up with the Premier, and
also the Attorney-General.

Native self-government - will not get
approval of all 10 provinces

MRS. S. CARSTAIRS: A supplementary question to
the same Minister, in his discussions with the various
groups, such as his own staff and the Native Secretariat,
and | would hope with the communities that will be
affected, is it their opinion that Native self-government,
as a principle, will in fact not get the approval of all
10 provinces and that he could not get the approval
of seven?

MADAM SPEAKER: Could the honourable member
please rephrase her question so it doesn’'t seek an
opinion?

MRS. S. CARSTAIRS: Did the communities affected
give advice to the Minister that this would in fact be
the case, that it would not result in the ever attainment
of self-governmentin that we couldn’t get the agreement
of seven?

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Attorney-General.

HON. R. PENNER: The Member for River Heights is
labouring under a misapprehension - not the first, and
| suspect not the last. And that is, that the draft
proposed change to the amending formula in any way
requires that the constitutionalization, or the
amendment to Section 35, is affected by the change
in the amending formula, or the proposed change in
the amending formula; it is not.

Meech Lake accord - no abrogation of the
problems with respect to self-government

MRS. S. CARSTAIRS: Madam Speaker, to the
Attorney-General, since he seems to want to answer
questions on Native Affairs, can the Attorney-General
assure this House that there will be no abrogation of
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consider allocating that $700,000 to the twinning of
Highway 75, Madam Speaker, and support Mr. Michael
Resch in his endeavours to convince this government
to give the twinning of that highway a higher priority.

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of
Highways and Transportation.

HON. J. PLOHMAN: Madam Speaker, we cannot treat
highway upgrading on such a frivolous basis, as to
when an MLA decides that he doesn’t want the money,
that that isn’t going to be spent there. It is based on
the fact that for 10 years that particular road has been
identified as being in a condition that was unsafe and
that needs to be improved.

Over that time, the situation has deteriorated, and
of course it's to the stage now where urgent action
has to be taken.

| should mention to the Member for Morris that, if
he had done some background on this, he would know
that we cannot allocate another $700,000 to Highway
75 at this particular time, even though that’s the
incorrect amount that’'s needed for Highway 67. The
reason we can't do it is because we have to acquire
the land for the next section, and there is money in
the budget for that at this time. So we can’t just go
ahead and just start grading before we have the land,
Madam Speaker.

Multicultural Task Force - purpose of

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for
Burrows.

MR. C. SANTOS: Thank you, Madam Speaker. I'd like
to direct some questions to the Minister responsible
for Culture, Heritage and Recreation.

Can the Minister inform this House and the people
of Manitoba about the purpose of this Multicultural
Task Force in Manitoba?

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of
Culture, Heritage and Recreation.

HON. J. WASYLYCIA-LEIS: Thank you, Madam
Speaker.

I'm pleased to be able to elaborate on the
announcement made today for the establishment of an
eight-member task force to develop a comprehensive
policy on multiculturalism.

SOME HONOURABLE MEMBERS: Oh, oh!

HON. J. WASYLYCIA-LEIS: Madam Speaker, it's clear
that this is another difficult issue for members opposite.
Madam Speaker, we on this side of the House have
a very strong commitment to the development of
multiculturalism. | think it’s an appropriate question to
be addressed in this Chamber and I'd like to inform
members opposite - since they may have something
to learn from this - about our efforts in this area.
Madam Speaker, this task force has been set up
under the able and expert leadership of Dr. Neil
McDonald and Dr. Claudia Wright. This committee will
review existing policies; it will consult with the broader

community and it will make recommendations back to
this government.

This province has a strong record on ethnocultural
matters and a leadership position across this country,
and through this announcement and the establishment
of this task force, we are committed to the enhancement
of cultural diversity in our society, to the eradication
of racism and discrimination, and to the creation of
greater opportunities and fairness for all of our diverse
member groups.

AIDS - Dr. Fast prevented from
participating in public debate

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for River
East.

MRS. B. MITCHELSON: Thank you, Madam Speaker.
My question is for the Minister of Health.

Given that the key to preventing the spread of AIDS
is education and public information, can the Minister
inform the House whether Dr. Fast, the most informed
person in the Department of Health, was prevented
from participating in a public debate to present full
and factual information on AIDS to concerned
Manitobans?

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of
Health.

HON. L. DESJARDINS: Madam Speaker, the
honourable member is absolutely right. It was suggested
to Dr. Fast that, because a statement will be made early
next week and also that we’re organizing a seminar
for all the members, that it would be better, before the
discussions, to wait as to the official policy, at the
request of this member and other members that there
will be a statement made presenting the government’s
position on that.

| want to emphasize again that if we are serious about
this, | think we’ve got as much as possible to take this
out of the realm of partisan politics. | think that it is
education, and it's not going to serve any purpose in
arguing and debating and also in doing anything that
might panic the people of this province and Canada.

| also asked my Deputy Minister, with some of the
concerns that | had after listening to the news yesterday,
to get in touch with the Federal Government and
suggest that they should call a meeting as soon as
possible to get the different provinces together. We do
not have the resources to start reinventing the wheel
in every province and that we have a policy and work
together on that.

The Federal Government has accepted and suggests
that it would be discussed at the coming meeting of
the Deputy Ministers in a couple of weeks, in June
some time.

AIDS - concerns of health care workers
re unknown carriers of virus

MRS. B. MITCHELSON: Given that the government
is going to come out with a statement, a policy
statement by next week, is the Minister of Health
including, or will he be addressing, in that policy
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statement the concerns of health care workers who
are caring for patients who may be carrying the AIDS
virus unknowingly to themselves, and to the caregivers
and will he be advocating a screening policy for those
admitted to hospital, a blood-screening policy?

HON. L.DESJARDINS: Madam Speaker, | suggest that
the honourable member wait till the statement is made
and then, also as stated, | intend to organize a seminar,
or a day where we would have the most knowledgeable
people in this province to discuss with the MLA’s and
the members of the press all our policies and any other
suggestion that any members might want to make.

Gambling consultant - purpose of

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for St.
Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: Madam Speaker, a question to the
Minister responsible for the Lotteries Foundation, of
which I've given her prior notice.

Could she indicate or inform the House, Madam
Speaker, whether she is bringing to Manitoba a
gambling consultant or operator from Lake Tahoe and,
if so, for what purpose?

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister
responsible for Lotteries.

HON. J. WASYLYCIA-LEIS: Thank you, Madam
Speaker, and I'd like to thank the Member for St.
Norbert for raising this matter with me earlier.

As | confirmed to the Member for St. Norbert privately,
we, the Lotteries Foundation has hired a consultant
from Lake Tahoe to train staff at the Manitoba Lotteries
Foundation on the operation of a new game that is
being introduced at the casino, and the name of the
game is called Pai-Gow and apparently is quite popular
with many people who enjoy going to the casino and
it was just more cost-effective and efficient to bring
the consultant here for the training rather than to send
all the staff to Lake Tahoe.

Gambling consultant -
cost to Foundation

MR. G. MERCIER: Could the Minister indicate how
long the consultant will be here, and at what cost to
the Lotteries Foundation?

HON. J. WASYLYCIA-LEIS: The consultant, whose
name by the way is Mr. Bob Yee, will be here for the
months of - around a period of August and September
of this year. The cost for the total course should be
no more than $15,000; however, it's estimated - and
we can never be certain about these estimations -
because of the popularity of this game, it could raise
roughly $7,500 a day.

SOME HONOURABLE MEMBERS: Oh, oh!

MADAM SPEAKER: Order please.
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Gambling - expansion of casino days

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for St.
Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: Thank you, Madam Speaker. A final
supplementary question to the Minister.

Could she indicate whether the hiring of this
consultant is in itself an indication that the number of
casino days will be expanded in the city?

HON. J. WASYLYCIA-LEIS: Not at all, Madam Speaker.

Evaluation programs -
consideration of long-term jobs

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of Urban
Affairs.

HON. G. DOER: Madam Speaker, the Member for River
Heights asked questions on the Core Area Training
Program and asked for evaluation reports. | have a
copy for her and the critic from the Opposition, of a
number of reports from the Core Area Training Program
in terms of the training.

Gerontology Community Workers Program
- wasted due to lack of employment

HON. G. DOER: In terms of the specific question on
gerontology students, | indicated at the time of
graduation, we had a real lag and some potential failure
in some of the hiring of those people.

| am happy to report that of the 17 graduated, 11
are now working in the field, which was higher than at
the time of graduation. One has moved to Brazil, one
is working in another area, one has gone to social work
program, one is in medical school and two are still
looking for employment and are going to school and
being subsidized by some tuition fees for the Core to
keep them current, so I'll table those reports.

MADAM SPEAKER: The time for Oral Questions has
expired.

INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

MADAM SPEAKER: May | direct the attention of
honourable members to the gallery, where we have 20
students, ages 16 to 24, from the Yes Canada School,
under the direction of Mr. J.G. Shingoose. The school
is located in the constituency of the Honourable Minister
of Housing.

On behalf of all the members, we welcome you to
the Legislature this afternoon.

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for
Niakwa.

MR. A. KOVNATS: Thank you, Madam Speaker. | beg
leave to make a non-political statement.

MADAM SPEAKER: Does the honourable member
have leave? (Agreed)
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NON-POLITICAL STATEMENT

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Member for
Niakwa.

MR. A. KOVNAT3: Thank you, Madam Speaker.

Madam Speaker, on a news release dated May 15,
1987, under the Department of Agriculture,
Communications, it starts off: ‘““Manitobans love the
taste of fresh vine-ripened tomatoes.”

Madam Speaker, in the early part of March,
somewhere around the 7th or 8th of March, when |
decided that | would share my love of tomatoes with
all members of the Legislature and some other
Manitobans, | thought that at this point, when | was
planting the seeds in the vermiculite and all the soil
that is required, that | would think very nicely of when
it came time to present the tomatoes to the members
of the Legislature.

This year, in addition to the members of the
Legislature, | have presented some tomatoes to the
press gallery and to some of the staff that now works
in this Chamber.

Madam Speaker, there will be a contest later on in
the year, when the fruits of the tomato plant will be
judged for roundness, maturity, and colour, and | will
be obliged, at that time, to give a non-biased view and
to select the winner, which | know will be on this side
of the House.

In addition, Madam Speaker, | represent an area of
South St. Vital, where there are many greenhouses and
there’'s quite a greenhouse industry, as well as
throughout the whole area outside of the City of
Winnipeg, and it was through the association of one
of my friends out therethat the geraniums were supplied
from Gary Paul's Greenhouse.

| was given a little bit of action from my seatmate,
who said, where’s my tomato? Madam Speaker, | said
to her that there was her tomato right in front of her,
it just had a red flower on it; but | will be very pleased,
when the time comes, to enjoy the fruits of the tomato
later on in the year, and | hope that you all will enjoy
the effort that was put into starting these tomatoes
from seed. Now it’s your turn.

| thank you very much, Madam Speaker.

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Minister of
Health.

HON. L. DESJARDINS: Madam Speaker, in the name
of the members on this side of the House and indeed
all the members of this House, I'm sure we would like
to thank the honourable member for his kind gesture
again. | think it was very appropriate, very nice that
he should make this presentation at this time.

I've noticed that in his usual thoughtful manner, he
provided the members of the female sex with beautiful
flowers, and the male sex with the flower plant. | wonder
if there is any indication or message in the fact that
both his leader and my leader received one of each.

| do have a concern though, Madam Speaker. |
wonder also what the reason is that you have a much
larger flower, and | wonder if that could be some kind
of a conflict of interest.

Seriously, Madam Speaker, we're anxious for this
contest that he mentioned. | think we should win it on
this side, and thank you again for your kind gesture.

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Leader of the
Opposition.

MR. G. FILMON: Madam Speaker, on behalf of the
Official Opposition in the Legislature, | want to add my
words of thanks to the Member for Niakwa, and | want
to assure the Member for St. Boniface that the reason
that | have one of each is because I'm equally supportive
in concerns of the needs of men and women in society
in Manitoba.

Madam Speaker, | just wanted to put on the record
that, when we told the Member for Niakwa that he
ought to bring some tomatoes for the press gallery,
this wasn’'t what we had in mind.

Madam Speaker, we do appreciate . . .

HON. L. DESJARDINS: It has nothing to do with you
being a great breeder.

MR. G. FILMON: | won't touch that one.

Madam Speaker, | do want to join with all the
members in thanking the Member for Niakwa for his
continuing generosity and his thoughtfulness today.

MADAM SPEAKER: | would like to add my thanks to
the Honourable Member for Niakwa who again asked
my permission to deliver his plants, which | readily
agreed to. | would just like to remind him that we are
still working for bread and roses.

ORDERS OF THE DAY

MADAM SPEAKER: The Honourable Government
House Leader.

HON. J. COWAN: | sense, Madam Speaker, after some
quick consultations that there is an inclination on the
part of members to forego Private Members’ Hour today
and to continue on in the Committee of Supply debate,
by leave.

MADAM SPEAKER: Is that agreed? (Agreed)

HON. J. COWAN: Thank you, Madam Speaker.

| move, Madam Speaker, seconded by the Minister
of Labour, that Madam Speaker do now leave the Chair
and the House resolve itself into a Committee to
consider of the Supply to be granted to Her Majesty.

MOTION presented and carried and the House
resolved itself into a Committee to consider of the
Supply to be granted to Her Majesty with the
Honourable Member for Burrows in the Chair for the
Department of Community Services; and the
Honourable Member for Lac du Bonnet in the Chair
for the Department of the Attorney-General.

CONCURRENT COMMITTEES OF SUPPLY
SUPPLY - ATTORNEY-GENERAL
MR. CHAIRMAN, C. Baker: The committee will come

to order. When we adjourned last, we were on 2.(b)(1).
Mr. Minister, do you want a word or two?

HON. R. PENNER: Yesterday, the Member for St.
Norbert asked for some information and I'm pleased
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to be able to provide most of it today and, where I’'m
not able to provide the information today, it will be
forthcoming.

First of all, a question was asked at the beginning
with respect to the cost of the Hecla Conference and
I'll provide the member with a breakdown showing a
total of $5,015.00.

The Member for St. Norbert asked about the cost
reduction in the previous fiscal year and I'm providing
the member with a detail showing from which
appropriation the amounts came. | can tell him or at
least corroborate or verify the information | gave
yesterday, namely, that all of this money, virtually all
of this money, was found in salaried dollars in terms
of keeping positions vacant for X weeks or months, as
the case may be. As aresult of that effort, a net saving
as shown was attained, not without of course some
loss in service, but not by cutting out programs or not
by in any way severely impacting the public.

The member asked some questions yesterday about
the Victim Witness Assistance Program. | have some
information and | also have a set of materials for the
member giving an update on the videotaping project
and on the Victim Impact Statement Project. The
material on the videotaping project includes the first
quarterly progress report to June 1986 and the second
progress report July 1986 to February 1987. He’ll
probably find there is more information than he ever
wanted to know or | ever wanted to know and so on
the Victim Impact Statement.

With respect to Affirmative Action, | have a set of
figures that compares - okay, | don’t know if this is
calendar or fiscal -'85-86 to ‘86-87, and gives the
breakdown of male-female employment in a number
of categories. So from that, any changes can be
extrapolated. Just for example - perhaps give the
member a copy before | refer to it.

In the managerial and administrative component, the
percentage of women year over year increased by about
10 percent from 17.6 percent to 27.8 percent. In some
cases, there has been little or no change. Overall, on
the first page, the percentage of women employees in
the department increased marginally from 74.6 percent
to 75.7 percent; in the legal classifications, a marginal
increase from 42 percent to 43.8 percent, but getting
there; in the last category, a change as noted from
65.7 percent to 75 percent. | think I've given the member
a copy. In fact, there is an additional copy for the
Member for Brandon West.

| think that is most of the information that was
requested, and more will be forthcoming as we proceed.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Yesterday, | had a question to be as noted that would
fall into the Crown Prosecutors’ area, | would think, or
perhaps it could fall later on under Law Enforcement,
but | wonder if | could just ask it now.

It would be this, | wonder if the Attorney-General
could advise us as to the status of the RCMP
investigation into the MTS-MTX matter.

HON. R. PENNER: | don’t have any more information
than that which | provided to the House a couple of

weeks ago, but | will try to get an update on that for
tomorrow.

As | recall, | was advised by the RCMP that they
were waiting on External Affairs, which department with
the Federal Government as a matter of protocol handles
the basic protocols that are required to have the entry
for investigation purposes of a foreign police force. I'll
get the update on that, perhaps even later this
afternoon.

MR. G. MERCIER: If there was some indication as to
when the investigation would be completed as best as
possible, that could be . . .

HON. R. PENNER: !'ll have that information for later
this afternoon.

MR. G. MERCIER: | believe we're now into 2.(c)(1)?
MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes, 2.(c)(1).

MR. G. MERCIER: Does the Minister have the report?
Is the report available?

HON. R. PENNER: On the Fatality Inquiries, yes, we
have some information.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, | know | indicated,
the Attorney-General asked me yesterday if | wanted
Dr. Markesteyn here and | said no. So | appreciate the
fact that he’s not here. But what | would like to do is
raise the matter, and the Attorney-General can take it
as notice and provide me with an answer as soon as
he can.

A few weeks ago, a criminal prosecution was
completed, and a female person was found guilty of
not providing the necessities of life to an infant. | think
it was the Abraham’s case.

HON. R. PENNER: The Abraham’s case, yes.

MR. G. MERCIER: I'm advised that the natural father
of that child who was killed late last week had an infant
of his die. It may have involved sudden infant syndrome.
I’'m told that the Chief Medical Examiner is investigating.
He may have already investigated that case. I'd like to
know the results of that, whether that child was in care,
was known to be in a high-risk situation. It may have
been - and I'm just raising it for informational purposes
at this stage - that there was absolutely no fault of
anyone, but | understand the Chief Medical Examiner
was investigating that, and would ask the Attorney-
General if he could provide me with that report.

HON. R. PENNER: |If you could perhaps provide me
in writing, before the end of the afternoon or in the
next few minutes, the name of the father if it’s different
than the name of the person who was found guilty, and
the name of the infant and the date of death. If he
can’t do it today, tomorrow.

MR. G. MERCIER: | can't do that, but it's such a
notorious situation, | think the Chief Medical Examiner
will be well aware.

HON. R. PENNER: All right. We'll certainly check it
and, if we need more information, we’ll get back to
you.
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MR. G. MERCIER: The other matter | would raise under
this section - and the Attorney-General may not have
had sufficient opportunity to yet consider it, but in the
Dr. Sigurdson-Professor Reid review of the child abuse
system, they recommend that The Fatality Inquiries Act
be amended so tnat, where there is a child in care and
there is a death, there be an automatic inquest and
the Chief Medical Examiner make recommendations
as to the involvement of any child care agency. I've
suggested that not be the only situation, that death
cannot be the only situation but, where there is a child
in care and there is significant mental or physical
disability incurred as a result of abuse while that child
is in care, such an independent investigation by
someone like the Chief Medical Examiner be obtained
- for Dr. Sigurdson or Professor Reid to point out that
the Department of Community Services is ill-equipped
to do a proper type of investigation in those
circumstances.

| would ask the Attorney-General if he’'s had an
opportunity to give any consideration to the
amendments that were recommended in that report.

HON. R. PENNER: First of all, | should tell the member
that we'’re planning a complete revision of The Fatality
Inquiries Act for the next Session. We've had several
consultations with Dr. Markesteyn, and the process is
now under way under the direction of our ADM, Justice
Ron Perozzo, who is here.

But on the specific question, | did have a request
from the Minister of Community Services, received in
fact, coincidentally enough the day before yesterday,
asking me whether, pending that full revision, it might
not be possible to bring in an amendment to the existing
act in this Session. | immediately referred that to the
ADM Criminal Justice whose responsibility is that area,
John Guy, and as soon as | can get an update to see
whether it's something that can be done by a simple
bill or even with consensus via statute law amendment.
If there’s something we can do this year on that
particular aspect, then we’d certainly be anxious to do
it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Brandon West.

MR. J. McCRAE: Mr. Chairman, on page 35, of the
Supplementary Information . . .

HON. R. PENNER: Page 35?
MR. J. McCRAE: 35.
HON. R. PENNER: You're way ahead of all of us.

MR. J. McCRAE: Isn’'t that where we’re supposed to
be?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes, that's the place.

HON. R. PENNER: There we are. | was just
complimenting you.

MR. J. McCRAE: Mr. Chairman, under Objectives, there
is the provision of grief counselling and supportive
nursing care to the families of the - | take it, that's

decedents. Then that is also listed under Activity
Identification, providing counselling and nursing care.
Could the Attorney-General tell us how many people
would be involved in services of that kind?

HON. R. PENNER: You're referring particularly to the
grief counselling and supportive nursing care to the
families, the descendants? There are two of the staff
in the office of the Chief Medical Examiner who are
primarily responsible, but they are more coordinators
than actual line counsellors. They’ll make sure, if they
are unable to handle the problem themselves, that the
appropriate agencies are brought into the situation.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 2. (c)(1)—pass; 2.(c)(2)—pass.
Section 2.(d)(1) Board of Review - the Member for
St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: How many persons are being
detained under the Criminal Code under this section?

HON. R. PENNER: I'm going to give the member a
breakdown. The total is 30, and the breakdown which
he will receive indicates where they are detained. Half
of the 30 are detained in Selkirk, and the others in
various other places.

MR. G. MERCIER: The statistics that the Attorney-
General has given me indicate that, other than mental
health centres or correctional institutions, one is in the
St. Boniface Hospital, six are in the community, one in
a group home, two in care homes. The fact that there
are persons in the community in group homes and care
homes, is that a recent change, that persons being
detained are now placed in the community in group
homes?

HON. R. PENNER: No, that's always been part of the
mandate of the Board of Review to, in appropriate
cases, see if a progression can be made from an
intensive-care type unit, such as Selkirk or Brandon,
through group or care homes and, in some instances,
into the community. Normally where a community
release is indicated - and it’s almost never. | can’t recall
an instance where there’s been a direct transfer from
the more intensive units into the community, but where
ultimately there is a community release, it's usually
accompanied by the equivalent of probation conditions
and terms, for example, of regular attendances for
medication or medication supervision, things of that
kind.

MR. G. MERCIER: Who sits on the Board of Review
now?

HON. R. PENNER: The Board of Review is headed by
Caroline Cramer, as it has been for some years now.
There are two psychiatrists, Prosen and Fred Shane,
and two other members, Dr. Marilyn MacKay and
Patricia Desjardins.

| should indicate, just as a footnote to the response,
that draft legislation has been circulated from about
six months ago, perhaps a little longer, by the Minister
of Justice. Fundamental changes are being proposed
in the area.
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One of the changes will be that the Board of Review
in fact will become, in a sense, the final arbiter. Normally,
as the member will recall, the Board of Review makes
a recommendation, and then it comes up sort of as a
Lieutenant-Governor Warrant to the Lieutenant-
Governor-in-Council. It is very difficult for the
Lieutenant-Governor-in-Council to do much with it.
Fortunately, the recommendations in my term of office
- | think it was the same in the member’s - have not
met with any failures. But in order to . . .

MR. G. MERCIER: With delays though.

HON. R. PENNER: With delays.

The proposal would, as originally drafted, call for
each provincial Board of Review to be headed by a
judge of the Court of Queen’s Bench. | think all of the
Attorneys-General suggested that be broad enough to
include the possibility for a provincial court judge
heading the Board of Review. So if in fact they're to
be the final arbiters of release mechanisms, there be
someone with the authority of judicial office heading
it up. We're supportive of that.

I'm advised that, at our forthcoming meeting of
Attorneys-General, Minister of Justice, next week, that
issue is on the agenda and is now reasonably well
advanced.

MR. G. MERCIER: | would tend to be supportive of
that type of change, if that's of any significance.
But those are all the questions | have in this section.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 2.(d)1)—pass; 2.(d2)—pass.
Resolution No. 18: Be it resolved that there be
granted to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding $5,4 14,000
for Attorney-General, Criminal Justice, for the fiscal
year ending the 31st day of March, 1988—pass.

MR. G. MERCIER: Are we at 3.(a)(1)?

MR. CHAIRMAN: Yes.

MR. G. MERCIER: There’s a reference here to special
programs. | wonder if the Attorney-General could

expand on that.

HON. R. PENNER: The special program thatis included
in there is the grant to the anti-apartheid group.

MR. G. MERCIER: Okay, that was the otherareawhere
| think the Attorney-General was going to bring some
information . . .

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, that's right and, in fact, I'll get
it later this afternoon.

MR. G. MERCIER: That grant, then, would account for
virtually almost all of the increase in this particular area.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Pass?

MR. G. MERCIER: Subject to getting the information
on the grants.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, that information will be available
within half-an-hour.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 3.(a)(1)—pass; 3.(a)(2)—pass.
Civil Legal Services, 3.(b)(1).

MR. G. MERCIER: On that one, Mr. Chairman, is there
an addition in this particular area in view of the increase
in Salaries?

HON. R. PENNER: There are no staff additions in this
fiscal year. There was an addition in the last fiscal year
related to the creation of the regulations unit, which
we now havein place and to which | referred yesterday.

MR. G. MERCIER: Are there people hired on contract
in this section?

HON. R. PENNER: Not on contract. We have either
SY’s or term SY’s.

MR. G. MERCIER: Does this include the hiring of any
outside counsel?

HON. R. PENNER: You're referring to 3.(b)?
MR. G. MERCIER: 3.(b).

HON. R. PENNER: | believe there's a small allowance
of up to $5,000 for outside counsel.

MR. G. MERCIER: Were there any outside counsel
hired last year?

HON. R. PENNER: Outside counsel that would be hired,
let's say for Energy and Mines - and | believe outside
counsel were hired for Energy and Mines last year -
would show up in that appropriation. Because it’'s a
charge back, it doesn’t show in our appropriation.

MR. G. MERCIER: Is the hiring of all outside counsel
at least routed through the Attorney-General for
approval?

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, the General Manual of
Administration calls for the approval of the hiring of
outside counsel by the Department of the Attorney-
General.

MR. G. MERCIER: Could the Attorney-General provide
us with a list of outside counsel who were hired during
the last year and the amounts paid?

HON. R. PENNER: Sure. Although it might appear in
Public Accounts but, nevertheless, | think to simplify
the task of the member, we’ll provide such information
as we have.

MR. G. MERCIER: When we get into Other
Expenditures, there’s a significant increase in
communication and supplies and service.

HON. R. PENNER: What we really have here is an
internal reallocation. The actual amount, for example,
that was spent through these various items in the last
fiscal year was 132.5 and there was money of about
the difference underspent, for example, in the office
of Legislative Counsel. So for the presentation this year
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to be more realistic, we've transferred money from
Legislative Counsel into this appropriation where we
expect it to be spent.

MR. G. MERCIER: How many people work in the
Regulations Unit?

HON. R. PENNER: Seven. That includes the four staff.

MR. G. MERCIER: What exactly are they doing? Are
they reviewing the regulations with a view to - certainly
the translation that has to be done, which would be
done not in this section - or is it being done in this
section?

HON. R. PENNER: We're just at the beginning of the
process. The Regulations Unit are proceeding
department by department and reviewing all the existing
regulations, weeding out stuff that should have been
weeded out long since, trying to eliminate redundant
or unnecessary matters. Then it goes to translation.
When that process has been completed, then it comes
up to Cabinet for reenactment in both languages. We
have begun with the Department of Labour and have
now reenacted two fairly substantial - in fact, I'm advised
that we've now, with the passage of a batch last
Wednesday, reenacted ail of the regulations of the
Department of Labour, and they are gazetted.

MR. G. MERCIER: How long is that expected to take?

HON. R. PENNER: | think that will take well into ‘88,
but will certainly be completed before the target date,
which is December 31, ‘88.

MR. G. MERCIER: What is the plan for this unit?
Obviously, it certainly wouldn’t be required in those
numbers.

HON. R. PENNER: That's why some of the positions
are term. We plan to keep a Regulations Unit, but it
could be a relatively small one in place. Certainly it is
proving itself to serve a very useful purpose in making
sure our regulations are crisp and clean and current.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Brandon West.
MR. J. McCRAE: Is it from this branch, Mr. Chairman,
one of the lawyers from this branch who acts as board
counsel for the Labour Board?

HON. R. PENNER: From Legal Services, yes.

MR. J. McCRAE: So the appropriation for that person’s
salary shows here and it wouldn’t show under the
Labour Estimates?

HON. R. PENNER: That'’s right.

MR. J. McCRAE: Thank you.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 3.(b)1)—pass - the Member for St.
Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, the Minister indicated
there was no increase in staff years, but I'm advised

that Mr. Frost was transferred to Manitoba Hydro for
a period of years. Can the Minister expand upon that?

HON. R. PENNER: Yes. Mr. Frost was transferred
effective, | think, June 1-May 1, and | believe it's for
two or three years - for three years. The Hydro will pay
us the value of his services so that he can be replaced
for that period of time by term staff.

MR. G. MERCIER: Has he been replaced?

HON. R. PENNER: | don’t think he's been replaced
yet. Excuse me for a moment. He will be replaced as
of June 1.

MR. G. MERCIER: Pass.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 3.(b)(1)—pass; 3.(b}2)—pass.
3.(c) Legislative Counsel, Salaries - the Member for
St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: Is there any increase in staff here?
Or has there been recently?

HON. R. PENNER: There isn’t year over year. | believe
there was an increase in staff between’85-86 and ‘86-
87. We'll check in a moment, but our recollection is
that there was an increase in'85-86, ‘86-87 of about
six when we really began the intensive work on
translation of the Statutes.

MR. G. MERCIER: Yes, | have to raise a matter again
that | think | raised a few years ago, Mr. Chairman, in
my capacity as Opposition House Leader.

| had brought to my attention about a month ago a
response from Legislative Counsel to someone who
works for our caucus who was asked to deal with
Legislative Counsel in developing a bill for preparation
of a Private Member’s bill for a member, and the
response - | did speak to the Government House Leader
about it - essentially was, | don’'t have time to deal
with your request because there’s so much government
legislation.

Now, | think, to raise again the fact that the rules of
the House provide that Legislative Counsel is Legislative
Counsel for all members of the House and there
certainly is, to my knowledge. The members of the
Opposition have not requested very much at all in the
way of Private Members’ bills. | think there have been
two on the Order Paper at this Session, and this was
the only other request for preparation of a Private
Member’s bill and | think, in view of the rules and |
think in view of the long-standing practice of the House,
that someone in the Legislative Counsel’s office should
bepreparedto respond in a reasonable way. Nobody’s
asking for overnight production of a bill but to respond
in a reasonable way to a request from a member of
the Opposition for preparation of a Private Member’s
bill. You simply can’t do a Private Member’s bill only
after you're finished all the government legislation.

HON. R. PENNER: Firstof all, 'm aware of the situation,
and | want to assure the member that we're more than
anxious to cooperate. It’s not a question of sort of an
interpretation of the rules. | think that there ought to
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be the facility to provide that kind of service to all
members. It's certainly, again, not a case of saying that
it will not be done; it's a question of priorities. It's my
hope that staff there will be able to get to that particular
matter - | don’t know what it is, of course - in enough
time for the Opposition to consider the introduction of
that matter, whatever it may be, in good time.

We are cognizant of a difficulty that hasn’t yet been
overcome, namely, that for a relatively few months of
the 12, there’s a great kind of press of work. The net
result is that a number of difficulties are created for
both sides of the House, in fact, in the drafting of
legislation when the House is in Session.

We are trying to deal with that in two ways. One is
to augment - the staff of the Legislative Counsel’s office
indicated that Mr. Larson will be coming back and will
be a member of the drafting staff in a matter of a
couple of months.

The other thing that we're doing is that, internally,
in the way in which we generate the legislative package
for a Session, we've begun this year several months
earlier than in previous years in order to see if we can
get staff working on drafting in the fall, well before
we’re into a Session.

MR. G. MERCIER: Having said that, | wouldn’t want
the record to show that I'm really being critical of the
Chief Legislative Counsel. He’s made presentations to
us on Bill No. 4 and | think all members of the caucus
are impressed by his abilities.

Mr. Chairman, does this area, | ask the Minister,
contain the cost of the translations?

HON. R. PENNER: The cost of legal translations, yes.

MR. G. MERCIER: This is a change is it not? You've
been moving this back and forth between Cultural
Affairs.

HON. R. PENNER: We made the significant change
twoyears ago, and | think that was appropriate to have
the legal translation unit in the office of the Legislative
Counse. It continues to be there, and it functions very
well there.

MR. G. MERCIER: What amount of money is being
spent on translations in this year’s budget?

HON. R. PENNER: In addition of course to the salaries
of the staff, the in-house staff, then the amount of money
that is being paid externally is found in the big number
under Supplies and Services. The majority of that
$689,800 - I'll try to get the exact number - but most
of it is for legal translation by two or three firms located
in the Ottawa Valley, Quebec City areas.

More particularly then, the external contracts
presently in place are capped at $400,000.00.

MR. G. MERCIER: Which outside firms did the outside
work last year?

HON. R. PENNER: We don’t have a current contract.
We did have contracts with the University of Moncton.

MR. G. MERCIER: Last year, there were two contracts
with . . . Mulcare?

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, Mulcare in Montreal. Traduction
Universelles - they're primarily doing the regulations.

MR. G. MERCIER: What amount was paid to each of
those firms last year?

HON. R. PENNER: We'll provide that either later this
afternoon or tomorrow.

MR. G. MERCIER: In those contracts, is money paid
per word to each of the firms? Is that the basis of
payment?

HON. R. PENNER: With Traduction Universelles, it's
per word. With Mulcare, he actually acts as a reviser.
As the member may know, when you have the
translation done, then it goes to a more experienced
person who does very careful analytical editing and
also does concordance, which is more difficult.

MR. G. MERCIER: They're doing different types of
work, then.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes.

MR. G. MERCIER: Was the contract to the Traduction
Universelles tendered?

HON. R. PENNER: Yes.
MR. G. MERCIER: They were the lowest tenderer?

HON. R. PENNER: -(Interjection)- I'd put that on the
record in exactly the same terms. I'm advised they
weren’t the lowest, but they were considered to be the
best in terms of the quality of work which we've seen.
We've had work from several firms - not several, that
would be exaggerating; about three or four firms -
including the University of Moncton, and this is not to
disparage any particular firm but we are insisting on
quality work. Fortunately, because we now have our
own in-house staff, headed by a very, very good legal
translator, Michel Nantel, we are able to check the
quality of work. Because, under our law, both texts are
official, we want to make sure that there is no disparity.

MR. G. MERCIER: What was the difference in the
tenders?

HON. R. PENNER: That information will be supplied
later this afternoon.

MR. G. MERCIER: Who is doing what work? Are those
contracts allocated for this year? We were speaking
about last fiscal year, now we're speaking about this
fiscal year.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, the question as | understand
it is: Have these contracts been tendered anew for
this fiscal year? Not to this date. The contract with
Traduction Universelles was, as | understand it, a
contract for doing the regulations, and so that contract
will run for another year and a bit.

The contract with Mulcare will probably come to an
end in September this year because of the fact that
we only have about another 37 of the CCSM to do.
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MR. G. MERCIER: In the Estimates, it shows
Recoverable from Canada, $300,000, but | think the
Attorney-General indicated that it may in fact be
$400,000 or $500,000.00?

HON. R. PENNER: $500,000 - yes.

MR. G. MERCIER: | have no further questions on this
section.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 3.(c)1)—pass; 3.(c2)—pass.
3.(d) Manitoba Law Reform Commission: Salaries
- the Member for St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: There’s a note in the Supplementary
Information that the first increase of total salaries is
due to funds added back to salaries budget after they
had been deducted in error in’85-86. What was the
actual amount they gotlast year from the government?

HON. R. PENNER: In the last fiscal year, the amount
that was received from Consolidated from the
government directly - The Law Reform Commission
actually received the amount shown in the adjusted
vote, but we received back from the Law Foundation
$100,000.00.

The Law Reform Commission received a total of 336.5
and we, in turn - the Paymaster - received $100,000
from the Law Foundation.

MR. G. MERCIER: | don’t know if you'll have this
information, but what had theygot in the previous year?

HON. R. PENNER: Actual, 329.5.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, I'm looking at the
Annual Report of the Law Reform Commission in which
they talk about their budget and the fact that the
agreement between the government and Law Society
provided that they were to receive 100,000 per annum
for three years, commencing with the ‘86-87 fiscal year.
They say the Commission was given to understand that
the amount of funding received from the government
would only be partially reduced and that, in effect, the
budget of the Commission would increase through the
provision of additional funds for outside consultants.
Unfortunately, no additional funds were received for
the ‘86-87 fiscal year. However, we have been assured
that this matter will be corrected and that the
commission will indeed receive additional funds during
the 1987-88 fiscal year.
Are they receiving additional funds?

HON. R. PENNER: I'm sorry, would you just give me
the last part of that?

MR. G. MERCIER: Are they receiving additional funds
or is this increase simply going to, | guess normal
increases in salary . . .

HON. R. PENNER: No, there will be, I'm advised, in
addition to what is shown here in print, an additional
40,000 in salary dollars that will be transferred internally
to make up what the budget should be.

MR. G. MERCIER: Where will that come from?

HON. R. PENNER: It will come from within the
department. In fact, the transfer of the staff year and
the salary dollars will go with it.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, I've discussed with
the Attorney-General previously that Dean Edwards
resigned as chairman, effective December 31. | note
that the new chairman has not been appointed.

I would like to remind him of a situation that occurred
in 1977 when we formed the government and this
position was vacant. The former chairman at that time,
Mr. Gibson, within a few weeks, | think, of taking office
was requesting me to fill this position immediately, and
taking some time to search for a capable replacement,
| think it was a matter of a few more months before
eventually we were successful in finding and obtaining
the services of Dean Edwards.

| recall the ferocity with which Mr. Gibson and of
course Mr. Cherniack, who was in the Opposition,
criticized me for not filling this important position, and
it is an important position. But in view of the fact - and
| won’t use that as a precedent for criticizing this
Attorney-General. But | would ask if there is a search
on to fill the position of chairman or chairperson of the
Law Reform Commission, and whether it’s anticipated
that the new chairman will be a full-time chairman.

Perhaps the Attorney-General will simply give us an
update as to that matter.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, in fact, | have been making
some soundings with respect to a replacement for Dean
Edwards, but haven’t advanced on it very rapidly.

Just a footnote here, I'm glad that ferocity is not an
attribute of either the Member for St. Norbert or myself.

Seriously, I've arranged for a meeting with the full
commission for June 12, | think - June 8 - to discuss
with the commission its mandate for the next year or
two and, in that context, to discuss the question with
the commission of full-time/part-time and to see, as
well, whether or not there’s any potential interest on
the part of current members of the commission in the
position of chair. So I'm making a fairly significant move
along the direction of resolving the question.

| should point out there is | think, if memory serves,
a fairly substantial difference between the existing
situation and the situation a few years ago - | can't
relate that back to the time when the member was
Attorney-General - and that is that we have a person
who is, in effect, the executive director of the
commission, Jeff Schnoor. Fortunately, the fact that we
haven’t had a chairperson has not crippled the work
of the commission carrying on and completing some
current assignments, and we want to look at some of
their new assignments.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, when one looks at
the Appendix 8 of the report, dealing with the reports
of the Manitoba Law Reform Commission and indicating
when the reports were submitted and when there has
been legislation implementing and dealing with the
commission’s recommendations, one notes that up until
about 1983, about April, early spring of 1983, most of
the - in fact, the vast majority of the reports of the
Law Reform Commission have been implemented. But
when one looks at page 21, dealing with reports made
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from the middle of 1983 on, we see very little - in fact,
we see no implementation of the recommendations.

| appreciate that the Law Reform Commission reports
are not infallible and they are never going to be
accepted holus-bolus by any government, but | wonder
how the Attorney-General accounts for the lack of
implementation of any of the reports since about the
middle of 1983.

HON. R. PENNER: Actually, there is more there than
meets the eye.

No. 59, breach of promise to marry, No. 14(a)
jactitation of marriage, are in fact, contained in a bill
that is already before the House - the ammendments
to The Quality of Status Act. So those are, in fact, in
this Session.

The Human Tissue Act, as the Minister of Health
mentioned in his ministerial statement to the House,
| expect to get first reading to a significant amending
bill to The Human Tissue Act which will build on some
of the recommendations of the Law Reform Commission
in Report No. 66.

| believe, subject to my checking back, that section
300 of The Liquor Control Act is being dealt with or
has been dealt with.

I’'m not sure what section 83 of The Queen’s Bench
Act is, but that may also have been dealt with.

The major family legislation, examination of The
Dower Act - the Intestate Succession, Testated Family
Maintenance, Married Women’s Property - all of those
are reflected in the discussion paper that's out and will
be reflected in the White Paper to come, with the
intention of introducing major family legislation in the
next Session of the Legislature.

| should say that I've just received in the last few
days, 68, Periodic Payment of Damages. Perhaps it’s
a couple of weeks. That is certainly something that |
will be reviewing very closely with a view to whether
or not it can be dealt with in the next Session of the
Legislature.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, the Attorney-General
referred to a discussion paper relating to Family Law,
family property and, | take it, all aspects of it.

I've been receiving, in the last little while, copies of
responses to that discussion paper but have never
received a copy of the discussion paper. | wonder if
the Attorney-General's Office could provide me with a
copy of that.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes. In fact, it will be up in a few
moments.

MR. G. MERCIER: | have no further questions on this
section.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 3.(d)X1)—pass; 3.(d)(2)—pass.
3.(eX1) - the Member for St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: The Supplementary Information
indicates a transfer of sub-appropriation 3.(c), more
adequatelyreflect expenditures in Family Law. | wonder
if the Attorney-General could just explain what is
happening there.

HON. R.PENNER: Yes. Again, that’s an internal transfer
from the appropriation of Leg. Counsel to this unit to
more realistically reflect its actual needs.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, | have no further
questions other than to say - that would be on the
Maintenance question. | note in the Supplementary
Information reference to implementation of a federal-
provincial report dealing with parental child abduction.
Again, this is an old problem. Have any other provinces
yet adopted the practice that we have in Manitoba of
supplying Crown attorneys to deal with the cases where
the child is abducted into the Province of Manitoba?
Do any other provinces yet provide that same service?

HON. R. PENNER: We believe that Alberta does, but
we'll check that.

MR. G. MERCIER: | take it this report - is the report
going to federal-provincial meeting dealing with that
question?

HON. R. PENNER: Next week, in fact. | should point
out that our Director of the Family Law Department,
Robin Diamond, was in fact nationally the coordinator
of the project.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 3.(e)(1)—pass; 3.(e)(2)—pass.
3.(f)(1) - Member from Brandon West.

MR. J. McCRAE: Mr. Chairman, one of the objectives
of the Constitutional Law Branch is to ensure
compliance with the Charter of Rights and Freedoms
in existing statutes in Manitoba. The Minister has told
me, when | referred him to section 6(2) of The Manitoba
Labour Relations Act which deprives Manitobans of the
right to speak their mind or express themselves, the
Minister reminded me that another section of that act
guarantees.

So it strikes me as strange that in one act you can
have a section that deprives your right to express
yourself and another section that guarantees it. Not
being a drafter of legislation and not being a lawyer,
I’'m confused by that answer the Minister gave us. I'm
asking the Minister if he has asked this branch of his
department to give him an opinion on that very specific
question. If not, will he do that and let us in the
Legislature have the benefit of that advice?

HON. R. PENNER: No, | haven't in fact made a specific
reference to the Constitutional Law Branch or to
counsel, which generally works on issues of Charter
compliance to look at that specific section. | did outline
in the House a process or review which we have and
which has resulted in the introduction of compliance
bills in the House for the last two or three years, and
again that will be the case in this year. That's one way
in which we deal with the question of possible conflicts
with the Constitution or, in particular, the Charter of
Rights and Freedoms, and that’s the pro-active way.

The other way is reactively. If in fact in the course
of a given case our legislation is challenged and then
it would be part of the duty of the Constitutional Law
Branch to do the appropriate research. The member
may recall another part of my answer - | think we've
dealt with this in the House on a couple of occasions
- and that is because in fact there was a particular
case. We should perhaps more accurately say that there
is a particular case involving, among other plaintiffs,
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the Metropolitan Stores, that in fact the Constitutional
Law Branch - and I'm not sure if others from other
parts - Legal Services, | think so.

Two or three of our staff lawyers have been very,
very heavily engaged over quite a period of time in
very fundamental research on the whole area of labour
law and potential constitutional problems that may arise
because of the litigation that in fact is already going
through the courts in other parts of Canada, litigation
that has gone through the courts in a somewhat similiar
constitutional context in the United States. So we have
a very, very extensive legal brief that discusses, for
example, the relationship between what might loosely
be described as trade union rights and questions of
freedom of expression as dealt with by section 2 of
the Charter.

The member may recall or may know, because of
his particular interest in labour legislation and labour
law, that case was about to be argued in full, our brief
having been prepared and filed with the court at the
beginning of April when the Supreme Court, in a case
arising from another jurisdiction, made a decision which
in effect said that trade union rights, such as the right
to strike, were not protected by the Charter.

The Charter is generally held, as far as litigation and
jurisprudence has now developed, is primarily aimed
at the protection of individual rights and not primarily
aimed at the protection of collective rights

There has been some concerned expressed by
various commentators about that decision, but there
it is, and that gives us some parameters within which
to analyze the operative effect of our own labour
legislation and whether or not it's in conflict.

| should perhaps just make one other general remark,
and that is that, of course, no rights are absolute,
whether they’re collective rights or individual rights.
The right that is stipulated in The Labour Relations Act
with respect to freedom of expression has to be read
in the context of other rights. You have those individual
rights that have to be weighed, and appropriately by
the judiciary, | would think, in any given case, against
the rights that are given - the collective rights - with
respect to matters such as unlawful interference with
organizing and unfair labour practices.

One final footnote, not meaning to personalize, but
| was counsel in a fairly significant case in that precise
area not that many years ago, involving the Free Press
and one of the printing unions, which is no longer the
bargaining agent - this was the editorial staff, really,
not the typographers and so on - in which the allegation
was made on the part of those, or their predecessors
who sit in the Legislative Gallery, and others on that
side of the production of the paper that their attempt
to unionize and to negotiate had been unlawfully
interfered with by the management of the Free Press.

The defence advanced, in fact, by the Free Press
was that exact section of The Labour Relations Act,
that had a different number at the time, and they
succeeded.

| don’t normally confess that | lose cases, but indeed
| did lose that case because of that provision of The
Labour Relations Act.

MR. J. McCRAE: Mr. Chairman, | don’t think | detected
that the Minister is willing to refer that complaint that

| have about The Labour Act to this constitutional
division for special consideration. Circumstances arise,
and | realize the branch is doing a review or is monitoring
cases, but every once in awhile in the course of events,
certain things transpire which, to my way of thinking,
should cause a repriorization of what the department
is doing.

Certainly, in the case of Jennifer Campbell, | know
| have a daughter who is 17 years old, and if a year
from now when she was 18, she was faced with the
problem that Jennifer Campbell is faced with, | think
we all tend to forget that these people are put to a lot
of legal cost if they’re going to defend themselves
against the type of things Jennifer Campbell is facing.

It seems to me that a government with any sense
of humanity or kindness would turn its attention to this
kind of legislation which puts people like Jennifer
Campbell in the position that they're in.

When we look at section 22(4) of The Labour Act,
we find the various penalties that are available to the
Labour Board and some of them, if carried to the
maximum, would be - well, in the case of people like
Jennifer Campbell, would destroy her life if the board
were to impose a penalty of the likes that it could.

On the face of it, and not knowing Jennifer Campbell
personally, but on the face of it, it strikes me that she’s
put into a very, very uncomfortable position which is
not right for a young person probably in one of her
first jobs, who expresses herself and finds herself
slapped with this kind of thing.

The Premier of the province and the Minister of
Labour, and | believe this Minister as well, have gone
to the trouble to point out that they don'’t think Jennifer
Campbell is going to have to face the kind of penalties
that are envisioned in the act because of some comment
made by a union leader.

The fact is the complaint is still there before the
Labour Board and it will be up to the Labour Board
to decide. If the Labour Board decides, by virtue of
the laws that we have in this province, that Jennifer
Campbell has somehow done something wrong, then
it is in the hands of the Labour Board to punish her
rather severely. After that, it's up to Jennifer Campbell
to appeal to a higher level and this all, of course, brings
about great expense for her.

In this case, I'm appealing to this Minister to ask the
Constitutional Law Division to review those sections of
The Labour Act that we've been referring to.

| refer, also, to some of the sections dealing with
automatic certification and sections which don’t
necessarily call for a vote in the workplace. | refer, of
course, to the Springhill Farms pork processing plant
situation and the problems the majority of the workers
there face.

The workers at the Sooter Photo plant in Winnipeg
have not been listened to by the Labour Board.

We’re dealing with ordinary Manitobans, Mr.
Chairman; we're not dealing with rich and powerful
employers and rich and powerful union leaders. We're
dealing with average, ordinary Manitobans who don’t
have the resources to take these things to the highest
court in the land.

On their behalf, | implore and plead with this Minister
to bring The Manitoba Labour Relations Act under very
close scrutiny by his department so that the average
Manitoba working man and woman can be protected
from the kind of thing Jennifer Campbell is now facing.

2250



Thursday, 21 May, 1987

HON. R. PENNER: First of all, | think it would be a
serious error in judgment to discuss the law, whether
it's the criminal law or a provincial regulatory statute
by reference to a case which is still before either a
judicial or a quasi-judicial terminal. That is a serious
error in judgment, and | reject it out of hand. | think
the member is doing a disservice to Jennifer Campbell
and to the union and to the cause of industrial peace
by doing that.

If he wants to raise the general issue, fine, and I'm
prepared to discuss it even though I'm not the Minister
of Labour; but since the question has been put, | won't
evade it.

Secondly, it should not come as a surprise to the
member, but apparently it does, that there are some
employers in the province - thank God, | think, far from
being the majority - who are not above trying to break
a union, or to weaken its position on the threshold of
bargaining for a new agreement, or for amendments
to agreement. If it comes as a surprise to the Member
for Brandon West, then he’s more naive than | think
he is, No. 1.

Number two, it should not come as a surprise to the
Member for Brandon West - it certainly doesn’'t come
as a surprise to me because I've been involved in trade
union activities for something like 57 years - not quite
67 - 52 - since | was a kid - that unscrupulous employers
may use some of their employees to front for them in
carrying out . . .

A MEMBER: May.

HON. R. PENNER: May, of course. Somebody else has
to judge it, not us in this committee. That's what we
have a Labour Board for and that's what we have the
courts for.

A MEMBER: It sounds like you're prejudging.

HON. R. PENNER: Let me finish my answer. In fact,
it may be the case - it may be the case - and that’s
all I'm saying - in some instances that an apparently
innocent employee, perhaps young, may be used in
some instances by an employer. I've known of lots of
instances. | make no comment in this case because |
know nothing of the facts of this case, don’t want to
know anything about the facts of this case. It would
impair my position as an Attorney-General to know and
be concerned about the facts of a case that is before
a properly constituted tribunal.

You know, we have constant reference to an 18 year
old. Damn it all, we have 16 year olds and 17 year olds
committing murder in this province, so the question of
age is irrelevant. It may be in a particular case - and
| don’t refer to this case at all - that if a young person
is used, as is sometimes in a criminal context is used
to break into a place or used by an employer to carry
out something that the employer hasn’t got the guts
to do himself or herself or itself - and again | stress,
I'm not referring to this case - that can happen.

But who's to judge? Not the Legislature, not a
committee of the Legislature, not a Minister of the
Crown. Who's to judge is the properly constituted,
legally and constitutionally valid tribunal constituted by
the people of Manitoba through their elected

representatives to make such decisions. And that’s
where the matter should rest.

Finally, references made in this searching for
hyperbole, searching for exaggeration, searching for
frightening tactics to the maximum penalties, the
maximum penalty for break and enter a house is life
imprisonment. It's never suggested by the Crown that,
because that maximum is there, indeed that is what
in fact should be inflicted in a given case.

Similarly, there’s no way if you have a penalty that's
basically designed as a $2,000 maximum penalty and
somebody wants to test the law, if that's indeed what
they want to do, by putting in a claim and say well that
really means $2,000 per employee and, if you take the
number of employees and you multiply by 2,000, you
come up to $3.5 million, whatever it might be.

You know, | once used to use as an example the fact
that there is really nothing to stop somebody filing a
statement of claim in the Court of Queen’s Bench
accusing the Queen of England of breach of promise
of marriage. You know, in the fullness of time, something
as frivolous and as vexatious as that will be dealt with
by those who are charged with the responsibility for
dealing with it. It is not the Legislature of the Province
of Manitoba, and it is not individual legislators in the
Province of Manitoba. That's not what we're elected
to do, to interfere with the court process.

If you don't like the court process or the particular
process, get yourself elected as the Government of
Manitoba and pass all the anti-union laws that you
want. But remember this, there was a pact made in
this country in 1944. We learned something from the
Wagoner Act (phonetic) passed in the United States in
1935, and that is that industrial peace benefits all of
society. That pact was that trade unions gave up the
right to strike during the lifetime of a collective
agreement in order to have bargaining rights as a sole
bargaining agent if they followed a whole number of
steps to get to that place.

It’'s because of that pact which was made in the
exigencies of war, to make sure that war production
wasn’'t interfered with, that in fact Canada has an
enviable record of industrial peace. Our Labour
Relations Act, which is far from being the most stringent
in the country, is based on that historic pact. Any
attempt to disrupt it by using one’s position as a
legislator to interfere in union activities that are taking
place, to put pressure on a quasi-judicial tribunal is,
in my view, entirely wrong. | think, with respect, the
Member for Brandon West is making a serious error
in judgement, and | don't intend to respond to it any
further.

MR. J. McCRAE: Mr. Chairman, the Attorney-General
is not dealing fairly with my question. He suggests that
I'm discussing the merits of a particular case, which
| did not do, but then went on to discuss the merits
of that very case himself by making the suggestion that
the likes of Jennifer Campbell are being manipulated
and dominated by the employer, which is something
that the Labour Board is supposed to decide and not
this Minister.
So, to say that | am fighting these battles . . .

HON. R. PENNER: You're finally learning.
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HON. R. PENNER: Not required.

MR. G. MERCIER: Are the RCMP in Winnipeg Beach
presently renting that facility or do they own that facility?

HON. R. PENNER: It belongs to the town.

MR. G. MERCIER: That figure of $72,000 contemplates
some saving in rent?

HON. R. PENNER: Yes. Operations and maintenance
costs included in that saving are $11,131.00.

MR. G. MERCIER: Is the Attorney-General assuring
the people presently served by the Winnipeg Beach
detachment that there will be no lessening of the
presence of the RCMP in terms of their visibility in the
community and the number of checks done, etc., the
number of patrols? There will be the same number of
patrols and the same degree of visibility in the
community after the closing of the office as exists now.

HON. R. PENNER: The assurances | have is that the
level of policing - | can’t break it down in quite the way
the question is phrased, but the level of policing will
be during the course of the week at least the same,
with the likelihood of the level of policing being even
better on weekends.

You see, when you're working out of a larger
detachment, you have more flexibility in the allocation
of members over the 24 hours in which policing must
be done. If you're down to a very small detachment -
a two-person detachment, | guess, as being the smallest
that we've had since I've been A-G, and there are not
many of them left. | think there are perhaps two two-
person detachments left.

But when you're down to a two-person, you really
have got a lot of blanks in which you're not policing.
Somebody has to sleep at some time and you can't
ask people to do efficient policing on a 12-hour basis.
So there are difficulties of that kind, particularly if one
of the two is out on call and the particular call is being,
heaven forbid, a catastrophy on the highway and they
have to wait for the highway unit to get down from
wherever they're going to get down, then policing just
isn’t been done. If you build larger units, then you do
have sufficient flexibility to in fact in many instances
improve policing.

MR. G. MERCIER: What did the Attorney-General mean
when he said during Estimates last year: ‘“And | say
categorically that, before any final decision is made in
this area or any other analogous kind of area, there
will be consultation with the communities involved’’?
Has this decision with respect to the closing of Winnipeg
Beach changed in any way as a result of any discussions
he’s had with the mayor, the town council or any other
citizen or representative of the area?

HON. R. PENNER: | suppose that the word, ‘‘categoric,”
is a word that ought to be avoided by most people in
life and especially politicians. But certainly in any event,
when | said, categorically there will be consultations,
that’'s exactly what | said and | can reply now,
categorically, there were consultations. | never said that

it will inevitably be the result that, as a result of the
consultations, we'll do something different than we're
proposing to do. As it happened we were able, because
of | think a very good kind of attempt by the Municipality
of Brenda and the Town of Deloraine to look at creative
ways of dealing with the policing situation in the town
and the municipality, to work out something that, if not
completely satisfactory, | think essentially is satisfactory
to the town and the municipality.

With respect to Winnipeg Beach, there was no
sensible alternative. I'm not saying that there was no
alternative suggested by Mayor Sabeski but the
alternatives which he proposed seemed to us to have,
to result in a more expensive, more inefficient kind of
policing. And so, although there were a lot of meetings,
a good deal of correspondence and a certain amount
of heat generated over the course of some months,
there was no basic alteration in the closure plan there
as there was with respect to the Deloraine detachment,
for example.

MR. G. MERCIER: The questionthough, Mr. Chairman,
was: Was there any change made in the original
decision with respect to the closing of the Winnipeg
Beach detachment? Was that modified in any way as
a result of the discussions that were held?

HON. R. PENNER: No.

MR. G. MERCIER: Was any consideration given to
occupying or working out of the existing office in
Winnipeg Beach during, particularly, the May to
September season in order to allow for a greater
presence in Winnipeg Beach at that time? At that
particular time of the year, as the Attorney-General well
knows, it is a very highly populated area.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, consideration was given but
finally that was not accepted as being a reasonable
proposal when the basic notion of having one command
station was being proceeded with. Winnipeg Beach is
not a tiny community in the summer; it’s a very
substantial community. | think the population swells to
12,000 or 14,000, something of that kind. I'm sure the
member has been to Winnipeg Beach. | hadn’t for a
ton of years but I’'ve been there fairly recently, last year
and the year before, and you can have a cruiser car
at one end of Winnipeg Beach and all kinds of
shenanigans going on on the beach or somewhere else
and the fact that there’s a police cruiser somewhere
in the general area doesn’t necessarily mean that you've
got hot-shot policing taking place. If you have a
command unit responding to calls and needs in addition
to regular patrolling, which will take place, you've got
efficient policing.

MR. G. MERCIER: Has the Attorney-General been
invited to a public meeting on Saturday, July 4 in
Winnipeg Beach to defend this position?

HON. R. PENNER: Apparently | have. | don’t know -
did the member write this letter?

MR. G. MERCIER: No.

HON. R. PENNER: It's with great regret, | would have
to decline the very kind invitation due to the fact that
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it's American Independence Day and | will be celebrating
it.- (Interjection)- July 4? | mean, | wouldn’t want to
work on July 4. What kind of flagrant insult to our
American cousins is this?

Yes, I've just received the letter and certainly I'll have
to check my diary and consider whether | am able to
respond on that particular day. Just think, we may need
a considerable break at that time. Maybe [I'll
counterpropose a meeting for August 4. We'll work
something out.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, would the Minister
be prepared to review this decision, say, after the first
year’s operation and have an opportunity to look at
any change there may be in crime statistics?

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, of course.
A MEMBER: Categorically.

HON. R. PENNER: | don’t know if “‘of course” is the
same as ‘“‘categorically.” In fact, | receive probably two
or three proposals from the RCMP every year for
changes, and | can’t think of any occasion in which
I've said no.

The proposal that came in the fall of 1983, | guess,
that resulted finally in these closures, | didn’t act on
immediately because of the consequences of closing
detachments. Ireally did want to consider every possible
alternative before moving along those lines.

But, for example, | had during the course of 1986,
a proposal that several members be taken, one from
here and one from there - and these were detachments
that had five or six or seven or eight people so that
it would not result in the closure - but the needs were
no longer there. Needs had arisen elsewhere. The RCMP
is a very efficient police force, very well organized and
they have a computer-based method of analyzing
personnel needs in any particular area at any particular
time, or they may - they're very innovative - decide
that they need a central auto theft unit and have to
pull the people from somewhere. So those things are
under review.

We’'ve had situations where - just to be more specific
- | think it was with respect to Gillam. It might have
been Grand Rapids, in one year, in 1985, the size of
the detachment was reduced but, because there was
a change in statistics, a request came in to go back
up to or perhaps even to exceed the original detachment
size, and we do respond positively to those suggestions.

MR. G. MERCIER: Would the Attorney-General
undertake to supply myself and | think the Member for
Arthur, crime statistics for the past, say five years, in
the three areas served by the detachments which he’s
closed.

HON. R. PENNER: | may not be able to go back . . .

MR. G. MERCIER: And also undertake to supply us,
have available, at or preferably before the consideration
of his Estimates next year, the statistics that are
available from the time of the closing of the detachments
up until that time next year.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, I'll undertake to do that.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The Member for Arthur.

MR. J. DOWNEY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I'd like to spend a few minutes to try and relay to
the Attorney-General the concerns of the constituents
of Arthur and of course my colleague has touched on
them for Winnipeg Beach.

| guess it would be appropriate to start with the shock
waves that went through the constituency last fall, in
the latter part of September, when word had leaked
or had been obtained through, | guess it was RCMP
or some connections, that there were in fact going to
be two closures of detachments in the southwest corner
of the province, which was extremely shocking to those
communities and I’'m sure the Deputy Attorney-General
can concur with this, caused immediate communication
to his office from me and, as well, | was able to contact
the Attorney-General directly to discuss what the
proposals were. In fact, my message to the reeve of
the R.M. of Pipestone was what | had been reading
and what my colleague, the critic for the Attorney-
General’s Department, had been reading out of
Hansard; that, in fact, before anything would happen,
there would be consultations.

| have to admit | was extremely upset and put in an
embarrassing situation as a member of the Legislature.
| was going by what | had read in Hansard, what my
colleague from St. Norbert had told me, and | was
relaying this to the reeve. Well, subsequently, the next
day | was proven to be wrong, which no one likes to
have done, but it happened, and | was upset and |
communicated that message to both the Deputy
Attorney-General and to the Attorney-General.

Subsequent to that, of course the Minister did carry
out the consultative process with some arm-twisting
and some jockeying of meetings. They really found out
how upset the community was with the decision that
had been taken, or the proposed decision that had
been taken. | can tell you that 1,500 people probably
turned out to two meetings, and | don’t know how
many letters the Attorney-General received from
constituents of mine, but | know that | received a lot
and there was a massive number of people
communicating on the matter. Subsequent to that, there
were some changes in the decision made.

| don’t give the Minister credit. | don't think we had
to go through any of them. | think that what we have
seen is some manoeuvres which, yes, will maintain some
police officers in Deloraine, but a less than satisfactory
agreement has been reached in Reston, and | will spend
a little of time on both of them.

| want to go back a little bit in history though, Mr.
Chairman. My colleague from St. Norbert, when he
negotiated the deal with the Federal Government
dealing with the RCMP coverage for rural Manitoba,
when one looks at the contractual arrangements that
were made between the Federal and Provincial
Government set up in 1979-80, the agreement was
entered into in which Manitoba, the province, would
share in 56 percent of the cost and that was maintained
over a three-year period. Well, when the current
government got into office, the new agreement which
they enteredinto allowed for an escalator, and we have
now gone from 56 percent of the federal costing of
the agreement to this year, 1987-88, of 64 percent.
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| can appreciate the fact that the Attorney-General's
Department is concerned about an increased cost
because of an agreement which was entered into. There
was an escalator there and I'm sure that, if he'd
negotiated a little harder and probably looked at the
previous agreement a little closer, maybe we could have
maintained that. | don’t know what negotiations took
place and I'm sure, as a new Minister, probably he felt
it was important to be somewhat of a conciliator or
an individual who could get along with the Federal
Government, and maybe didn’t want to take the tough
line that apparently he’s prepared to take with some
of the federal-provincial agreements that are now going
on. But | think it goes right back to that, that our former
Attorney-General had negotiated a good deal with the
Federal Government back in 1979-80, where we were
sharing 56 percent of the cost . . .

HON. R. PENNER: Do you want to stop him now Gerry,
before he gets you in too deep?

MR. J. DOWNEY: Anyway, the point I'm making is that
the Attorney-General, through an agreement with the
Federal Government, is locked into an increased
provincial cost of policing. That's the bottom line. But
| give the former Attorney-General credit for the
agreement which he entered into.

Mr. Chairman, that takes us to the next point of who
has to suffer because of this decision, and it’s the people
of Reston and Deloraine and those people who have,
for 50-some years, enjoyed the services of the RCMP
stationed in their community with a barracks. Let me
tellyou, and | know the Member for Flin Flon who grew
up in a rural community, as many other members of
the Legislature have, when you take the presence of
an RCMP detachment out of a town, it's really like
pulling the foundation out from under a town. People
have come to depend on the presence of the RCMP.
The presence of the law officer does as much to deter
the criminal activity as probably trying to catch them.
There is an element of deterrence there. The presence
is extremely important, particularly to young people,
particularly to elderly people and to people who are
trying to maintain a business in those communities.

So one cannot overestimate the emotional impact
that this decision had. It was demonstrated - and again,
I’'m sure the Assistant Commissioner Henry, Mr. Elton,
the Deputy Attorney-General can relay the message,
the emotional feeling - and my colleague from Brandon
West was at the meeting as well - the emotional feelings
of those communities demonstrated in packed high
school auditoriums, two different nights. | do appreciate
the time that was spent there by those individuals.
Although | don’t appreciate the decision that was made
leading up to it, | appreciated the effort that was made
to try and deal with those situations.

But there are some conflicting things, and it all comes
back to dollars and cents, Mr. Chairman. We see the
decision by the government to say it's better to have
the subdivisions in Gimli, Beausejour, Carman, and
Steinbach. They're decentralizing to have better hands-
on policing. But yet we come to the communities of
Deloraine and Reston in the southwest corner of the
province, we're going to centralize into the bigger
centres because - why? - because it's cost saving. Well,

where'did the hands-on policing policy go or principle
disappear to? | think it’s important to have the hands-
on policing there, as it is in your other communities.

It's just as important, particularly when we're dealing
with Deloraine, and let me just talk about Deloraine
for a few minutes. There is a fairly major resort area
there, as well as the one at Winnipeg Beach. We have
probably 800 cottages on Lake Metigoshe, which is
patrolled by the Deloraine Police Department. It's an
interface with the United States of America.

If anybody has recently checked the price of alcohol
in the United States or cigarettes, you would find it's
a substantial savings to purchase them in the United
States of America. | will wager with the Attorney-
General, | would say that you just watch the summer
activity in the Lake Metigoshe area, as far as the illegal
importation of alcohol and cigarettes. It's practically
going to be impossible to cover it, or it would have
been under the initial proposal.

Now there has been a change, as | have indicated,
they have changed their decision and now, rather than
having what was there, two RCMP and the local town
police, they’ve removed the local town police or will
be removing them. There will be, as | understand it,
four RCMP in Deloraine now. We've gone from a policy
saying, well we didn’t really need them, we were going
to remove them all. Now we're going to have four of
them there. You know, it’s hard for me to understand
as to why, all at once, we were able to get rid of them
totally, but now we're back to four. And I'll tell you why
we're back to four, because the local taxpayers are
now prepared to pick up some more of the costs. It
becomes a little easier to tolerate the situation if the
local taxpayers are prepared to cover part of it.

| think it's unfair, Mr. Chairman. | know that there
has been some agreement worked out where the levy
on all municipalities paying into the RCMP, costs which
go to the Department of Municipal Affairs, I'm aware
that Deloraine or some of those municipalities will have
that lifted off so that it isn’t a case of double taxation.

But | think it's an extremely difficult situation to put
the surrounding municipalities in. They’re going to be
paying for the provincial police costs through the
municipal program and, as well, in some cases - it
depends on where the boundaries are drawn - they're
going to be paying-as well through the agreement that
was reached in Deloraine.

Why did the people of Deloraine agree to this?
Because, Mr. Chairman, | have to tell you, there was
such a nervousness from young women and farm wives
and people in business that they were prepared to say
we will pay for it rather than lose them. That's what it
got right down to.

Reston, Mr. Chairman, is equally upset but they didn’t
yield to the pressure. There was an agreement, as |
understand, that worked out where there’s one officer
going to be left in Reston, working as a satellite officer
out of Virden.

Mr. Chairman, | don’t know how the Attorney-General
is going to keep track of what's going on with the
provincial policing. | think it's the responsibility, to be
quite honest, of the province to pay for the RCMP
protection for all people in rural Manitoba under the
agreements that they have.

| think, when you start into the satellite or these other
kinds of agreements, that you're going to end up with
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inequities in certain cases as far as police coverage is
concerned. | think you're going to have a system that
is going to be in disarray. | don’t believe that we're
going to have the kind of police protection that the
Attorney-General perceives that we're going to have,
and | know he’s been told by the RCMP that everything
will run along smoothly.

The community of Reston and the R.M. of Pipestone
have not been convinced of that, Mr. Chairman. They
have not been convinced that they're going to get the
same coverage with one RCMP officer living in Reston
as when they had three. | don’t know who around this
table or anywhere in the Legislature can put an
argument forward that can convince my constituents
or me of that situation that you're going to have as
good a protection, the good kind of protection that
they've had when, Mr. Chairman, they’ve only got one
officer now and they had three. | cannot be convinced
of that argument. And even worse, Mr. Chairman, they
were trying to convince them that, without any RCMP
officers, they were going to have as good a protection
as they had when they were there. | mean, you just
can'’t sell that argument.

| want to touch briefly, because | do have a few
numbers that were provided at one of the meetings -
and again the decision was based on, as | say, cost
savings. One of the comments that kept coming up is
that the incidence of crime was down in those
communities. Well, information that | have, Mr.
Chairman, was not so, particularly when it deals with
both Deloraine and Reston.

I'll refer to a study that was done - this deals with
Deloraine - and I'll refer to the information which | have,
and that’s under Criminal Code. They indicate here
that Criminal Code cases dropped considerably in 1985,
but are now returning to the 1984 levels. Well, when
we look at what 1984 and 1985 levels were under the
Criminal Code, 1984 was 88 and 1985 was 58. Well,
therewas a drop. Butnow, in 1986, they were returning
back to the 1984 level. So to say the incidence of
Criminal Code activity was down is really not a true
statement, and | think that should be put on the record.

Reston, as well, they indicate in the report, Mr.
Chairman, that it was at a stable condition or Criminal
Code cases have remained relatively constant. Well,
does that mean to say, if they're constant, we're going
to see if they’ll increase by removing the RCMP
protection? | think that’s a pretty good record. If it's
not bad and you can maintain a constant number, then
why change anything? Why change it? Why reduce the
number of RCMP’s? If it's not increasing, then why
take the chance on having it increased? Why gamble
with the lives of people, their property and their safety?
That’s the point | want to make there.

Mr. Chairman, | note some specific questions dealing
with the numbers. The total complement of the RCMP
which protects rural Manitoba, what is the current in
this year's Estimates? What is the complement of RCMP
throughout Manitoba, dealing with RCMP staff man-
years or staffpersons?

HON. R. PENNER: Do you want me just to answer that
question or to deal with the other points that you
mentioned?

MR. J. DOWNEY: You can deal with the whole thing.

HON. R. PENNER: Well, I'll deal with the last one first.

The authorized establishment currently - and that
doesn’t mean that every position is filled - is provincial,
597, federal, 187, and municipal, 164.

MR. J. DOWNEY: Provincial was what again?

HON. R. PENNER: 597; federal, 187; municipal, 164,
for a total of 948, which includes, | think, civilians. No,
those are regular members, plus 30 Special 3B; that
is Indian constables dispersed through some 20
communities.

Just a footnote to that particular response, the federal
component which we don’t pay for as taxpayers directly
- that is as provincial taxpayers - is involved in, among
other things, the responsibility for protecting the border
in terms of smuggling and all the rest of it. So it's
primarily our view, in any event that the policing that
may be necessary on lovely Lake Metigoshe is a federal
responsibility, not one that ought to be the primary
responsibility of the provincial units stationed at
Deloraine or wherever.

The only other comment | wanted to make - one is
just a relatively minor factual difference - the number
of regular members who will now be in Deloraine is
not four but three, in fact.

Two other comments, with respect to Deloraine, if
one takes all of the matters for which the RCMP are
responsible - that is it goes well beyond Criminal Code,
and includes federal statutes such as narcotics and
excise, income tax and so on, provincial offences and
highway traffic - the figures for’84,’85 and ‘86 for the
Deloraine detachment are, in total, 480 for'84, 407 for'85
and 372 for ‘86. So that in fact there has been a
considerable decline in that area served by the
Deloraine detachment.

Did | understand the Member for Arthur suggest that
perhaps it ought to be a provincial responsibility to
pay for all policing costs, including town policing and
towns and villages?

MR. J. DOWNEY: No, Mr. Chairman, | indicated that
the agreement that was in place currently, as far as |
can see, was working not that badly with the towns
that were under 750, | believe it is, that's it's the
responsibility for the . . .

HON. R. PENNER: That'’s right.

MR. J. DOWNEY: That's right, and over and above
that, that there is a responsibility to pay for the town
policing by those towns, although there is a grant back
to them from the Department of Municipal Affairs.

HON. R. PENNER: That's right, yes.

MR. J. DOWNEY: What I'm indicating was that the
system that we have - I'm making direct reference to
both Deloraine and Reston - was not working that badly.
And for the sake of - and I'll get into that now if the
Minister doesn’t mind - what we were told was a cost
saving of several hundreds of thousands of dollars.
Well, I've never been able to calculate - there were
some large numbers being tossed around over a period
of time.
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Mr. Chairman, I'm still not convinced that there is
going to be any saving other than that. There will just
be a redeployment of those people taken from Winnipeg
Beach, Deloraine, Reston and put elsewhere in the
system; that it's really not a saving as the Minister
indicated but just a reorganization of the staff and of
the RCMP officers. The 597 provincial RCMP officers
that he’s talking about, that was last year’s number,
and is it the same proposed for this coming year?

HON. R. PENNER: No, there’ll be a net reduction of
at least three, the three that the closures in effect spring
out.

MR. J. DOWNEY: So the SMY’s for this coming year
will be 594, is that the authority that you asked for?

HON. R. PENNER: That will be the authorized
establishment, right.

MR. J. DOWNEY: Well, Mr. Chairman, then let’s deal
with that. If the wages of three officers, in the information
that | have, you're dealing with two officers in Deloraine.
Well, the total for 1987-88 were savings of $181,000
for that year. Is that correct, $181,927.00?

HON. R. PENNER: I'm sorry, would you repeat the. . .

MR. J. DOWNEY: Yes, the number of which - the cost-
saving summary which | was referring to is in the
neighbourhood of $181,000 for 1987-88?

HON. R. PENNER: Well, what | can undertake to do
for the member, rather than engage in calculating step
by step today, is take it as notice and the information
will be provided tomorrow. I'm referring it to . . .

MR. J. DOWNEY: Maybe | can make it easier and
quicker for the Minister, Mr. Chairman.

The Minister said the total officer saving will be three.
In my calculations, | don’t know what an officer makes,
something in the neighbourhood of $35,000 a year. Is
that the kind of cost saving per officer?

HON. R. PENNER: The average provincial share of a
salary, plus benefits, is $30,620; that's the provincial
share.

MR. J. DOWNEY: Okay, so then, Mr. Chairman, let’s
get onto that. We're talking about a $90,000 cost saving
per year.

HON. R. PENNER: Plus some operational costs of
savings.

MR. J. DOWNEY: No, Mr. Chairman, there is a credit
on the barracks, there isn’'t a cost of maintenance of
barracks. There’s a credit back to the province on the
barracks.

HON. R. PENNER: If | may, to the Member for Arthur,
I’'m talking about the whole ball of wax.

MR. J. DOWNEY: Yes.

HON. R. PENNER: Winnipeg Beach, Reston, Deloraine.

MR. J. DOWNEY: The point I'm trying to make, Mr.
Chairman, is that there isn’t near the cost saving in
what move was made as the Minister was trying to tell
the public, and to try and tell us at the time the change
was being proposed that there isn’t really the dollar
saving there. He was using the figure of $1.5 million
or several hundreds of thousands of dollars at that
time. So it should be fairly easy to give us the number,
that there’s $30,000 roughly in the Provincial
Government'’s share of wages. Whatis the support per
officer? That must be known by the department. What
is the cost of the support portion of it?

HON. R. PENNER: The basic figure which | was using
was a projection of the cost saving over the lifetime
of the existing contract, adjusting for the increased
percentages of provincial share.

Let me again recall an agreement, a joint venture
between the former Attorney-General and myself.
Because when | came into office, that agreement had
already been negotiated and was waiting for my
signature, much to everybody’s surprise, | expect. If
you take the increasing percentage over the lifetime
of the contract, which caps at about 72 percent - it's
currently at 64 in this fiscal year - and adjust for
anticipated salary increases, if you factor all of that
through in the remaining years of the contract you do
reach - and | can’t give you the precise figure - a figure
which in fact is several hundred thousand dollars.

MR. J. DOWNEY: Mr. Chairman, | can give the Minister
a number that | have, and | think this is extremely high.
| don’t think it's accurate. | think this is a lot higher
than the reduction of three RCMP officers, a figure of
just about $800,000 is what the saving is over the
lifetime of the contract. That was what the decision
was based on. | don’t agree with that figure. | think
it's extremely high when you calculate the cost of three
RCMP officers is what he’s saving, over the period of
time from 1987 to 1991, at $30,000 per officer, and |
don’t know. As | said, I'm looking for the support amount
of money that goes with them; it can’t come up to that.
I'd think you'd be looking at less than half-a-million
dollars.

I know that if | were to go back to some of the press
clippings and some of the statements made by the
Attorney-General at the time, we were being told that
it was going to cost in the neighbourhood of $1 million
- or it would be a saving of $1.5 million and that isn’t
accurate. What I'm saying, Mr. Chairman, is there were
a lot of other areas in his department that he could
have saved $800,000 or $500,000, probably within his
own administrative staff, because the Minister should
be able to indicate what his overall administrative costs
have gone up since he has become the Attorney-
General with increase of employment, employees and
support staff to him and to his top departmental people.

The point is, Mr. Chairman, his priorities are wrong.
His government'’s priorities are wrong to sacrifice the
police protection, life and property in rural, or any town
in Manitoba, at a time when he’s increasing the support
to his own department, his head office. | agree there
has to be some expenses and there are increases, but
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| think if we got into the numbers - and I'm not going
to take the time to do it right now, Mr. Chairman,
because of the time. But the point | want to make and
| want the Minister to prove me wrong, that he isn’t
first of all getting the cost saving out of this manoeuvre
that he has indicated he was going to and that, if he
was going to save money, he could have done it in
other areas within his department that wouldn’t have
had the impact on the safety of lives and people in
Reston, Deloraine and Winnipeg Beach.

The price that the population is paying is too much
for the cost saving that he is proposing. It's an essential
service. It's as essential, Mr. Chairman, to have the
RCMP out there as it is to have the schools. I'm telling
you, Mr. Chairman, it's a wrong-headed approach to
the safety of the lives of people and to the protection
of property. His numbers, he hasn't been able to
substantiate it from Day One of this argument, and,
Mr. Chairman, | won't accept his argument that he’s
making the right move. In fact, my colleague from St.
Norbert has asked for a review in a year’s time.

Mr. Chairman, there’s one cost that hasn't been
calculated in this whole exercise, and that's when we
came back into office, Mr. Chairman, what it will cost
to put the RCMP officers back in place in those
communities in Manitoba that deserve it. That’'s one
cost that hasn’t been calculated by his department. |
can assure you, Mr. Chairman, that will be a cost that
the government will have to pay to replace RCMP
officers where they’re needed in communities that
they've been stripped from by him.

Mr. Chairman, his move in Reston is not acceptable
to me. It's not acceptable in Deloraine, although | do
appreciate there is an increase in RCMP protection in
that area, albeit a cost to the local taxpayers. | don't
think it's fair to impose that tax on them when other
communities and all the other municipalities in Manitoba
get it provided by the province. Why do the communities
of Winchester and Brenda because of, let’s say,
blackmail tactics almost, to maintain RCMP service,
that they have to pay off their own tax base? They're
paying the majority of education taxes, Mr. Chairman,
and now they're expected to pay their RCMP.

When is it going to strike Lac du Bonnet? When is
it going to be a decision in Lac du Bonnet riding to
reduce RCMP? And the only way they can maintain
them if the local taxpayers say, look, we’'ll have to pay
it because we won't lose it. Dauphin, Ste. Rose, these
are all small town communities that could be in danger
by policies that we’'ve seen implemented by this
administration.

I’'ve a list of many rural municipalities that have written
in protest of this move. The head of the Union of
Manitoba Municipalities has met with the Attorney-
General and the Premier to try and stop this ill-
conceived move.

Mr. Chairman, I'm not going to give up until we get
a full complement of RCMP back in the Town of Reston,
and those in Deloraine are paid for where they should
be paid out of, and that’s out of the provincial coffers.
| don’t believe it’s their responsibility and I’'m not going
to quit until the Minister gives us a commitment that
either next year - if it takes until we replace him in
office, Mr. Chairman, so be it, but we're not going to
give up trying to have the people protected.

Winnipeg Beach, | can tell you, Mr. Chairman, there
are people with investments; certainly maybe it's a

cottage, maybe it's some other type of property. Do
you think they feel comfortable that the RCMP presence
will be moved out of there on a weekend in August
that he wants to change the meeting to, or whether
itd be July? Mr. Chairman, certainly, they can drive
down from Gimli, but it's somewhat different than having
an RCMP detachment and presence in that community,
the same thing in Reston.

In fact, Mr. Chairman, there won't be an RCMP
presence. If they’d have removed the one from Reston,
from Carlyle, Saskatchewan to Souris, Manitoba, that’s
a series of several hundred miles on that stretch of
highway coming in from Saskatchewan - not
responsible. Yes, and we do have one left in Reston.
| say it's not acceptable, and I'm going to continue to
press until we have our full complement back there,
Mr. Chairman.

HON.R. PENNER: Generally, throughout North America
but certainly in Canada, in the last decade, the increase
in the number of police and in policing costs has vastly
exceeded the increase in crime.

| think there’s a common misconception - one which
| think, to some extent, the Member for Arthur is prey
to - that by increasing or maintaining the number of
police in any given community, we are thereby going
to be dealing efficiently and effectively with the problem
of crime. That just isn’t so and there are simply no
statistics to bear that out. Nevertheless, | agree entirely.
People are concerned. | agree entirely that there is a
certain basic level of policing which must be provided.

But I'll tell you, as an Attorney-General and not as
a police administrator, | rely on the RCMP to tell me
what it is that in fact they need. There are clauses in
the agreement between ourselvesand the RCMP which
say that they have the final right with respect to
standards of policing that must be maintained. | think
it's good that the contract has that provision. | wouldn’t
want it otherwise.

The process that we're now discussing was put in
motion - let me emphasize again for the record - by
a submission from the then-Assistant Commissioner
of the RCMP to myself in 1983 with a very
comprehensive review of policing throughout the
province and with respect to the formulae that are used
in making decisions of this kind, point No. 1.

Point No. 2 - and I’'m only going to be making one
or two - | don’t think it’s an answer to a proposal that
saves, let it be $500,000.00. Five hundred thousand
dollars is not a small amount of money to say, well,
you could save $500,000 elsewhere. Indeed, if we can
save $500,000 elsewhere, then we should be saving
$500,000 elsewhere. In each case, one must do of
course a cost-benefit analysis because sometimes it
is true that what appears to be a cost saving, in fact,
creates an expensive inefficiency. Not every reduction
in the expenditure of dollars that is at the bottom line
is a cost saving.

| make no apologies, incidentally, for some
developments within the Department of the Attorney-
General in terms of its administrative development
because, you know, in the material that's available,
other material that can be made available, you will see
that you have in the Department of the Attorney-General
one of the most efficient, if not the most efficent,
departments in the whole of government.
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A MEMBER: Better than Health?
HON. R. PENNER: Anything is better than Health.
HON. L. DESJARDINS: Wait till you're sick!

HON. R. PENNER: The Minister of Health says wait
till I'm sick. | want to tell the Minister of Health and
the Member for Arthur, who's already got his eye on
my office, you know, you don’t have to be a lawyer to
be an Attorney-General. But | recently had a medical
check-up and I'm so healthy that the insurance
companies are lining up to increase my insurance. |
know that's bad news for you, but don’t worry about
it.

MR. J. DOWNEY: Wait till they hear about the meeting
in Winnipeg Beach.

HON. R. PENNER: Oh no, I'm not attending any
meetings on July 4, out of respect for our American
neighbours.

Seriously, if we can save money in this area, then
we have a responsibility to save money in this area.
If, as the member says, he thinks we might be able to
save it elsewhere in the department, then | think we
have a responsibility to examine that and | think we've
done a damn good job in doing that over the years.
| think we operate a lean - | hope not a mean -
department in many ways.

What really we're doing and have done very
effectively, | think - | don’t want to blow my horn too
much - in the department is to repriorize so that, in
fact, we can meet new demands. You may recall, just
as anexample, in the introductory remarks that | made,
that we are seeing a considerable increase in
commercial fraud. We don’t think it’s just a blip; | think
it’s an endemic disease. Both the RCMP and ourselves
have had to allocate more personnel to this area. When
you're talking about commercial fraud, in some
instances you're talking about scams that cost
Manitobans, whether they're ordinary or extraordinary
Manitobans, it doesn’t matter, millions of dollars. We've
got to allocate resources to deal with these new
developments as they take place.

MR. J. DOWNEY: Mr. Chairman, I've got a final
comment to make. | make it again on behalf of an
option that may be able to be looked at as far as
Reston is concerned.

It's hard, and I'm not opposed to the Dakota-Ojibway
police system. There probably could be some
improvements, but | think it’'s a good opportunity for
personal development within the system and for police
protection on the reserves. But what doesn’t make
sense to the constituents and the people of Reston
when they look at it, that there are three Dakota-Ojibway
officers on the reserve looking after the protection of
300 people.

We have the R.M. of Pipestone, Reston and the
populations of those areas probably coming close to
3,000 people and it's only six miles apart - the reserve
is about six miles away - and we see three officers
looking after 300 people and we have the proposal to
totally remove the RCMP away from some close to

3,000 people, and it just doesn’t wash, it doesn’t seem
to make economic sense.

I'm not saying that they should be totally removed
out of the Dakota-Ojibway, but it seems to be a little
heavy to have that many officers there for that many
people and none in Reston - or now there’s one. There
must be some way that we can - and particularly when
it comes to heavy Criminal Code cases, the RCMP have
to cover the reserve anyway. That's who has to move
in. So there’s something wrong, Mr. Chairman. It doesn’t
make common sense. It isn't a common-sense approach
in the minds of many people, and it isn’t in mine, that
we should move in that direction.

So | think that when you're looking at it, Mr. Chairman,
looking at the whole of the area, let's take into
consideration those factors as well; and | would hope,
within a year, that the Minister could see fit to
reimplement the number of RCMP in Reston that have
been traditionally there.

HON. R. PENNER: The Member for Arthur and | are
coming perilously close to an agreement here, and we
can have it expunged from the record if you wish, but
in terms of efficiency and operational effectiveness, |
have some concerns about programs such as the DOTC
Program where | think that we have whatever the
opposite of economies of scale - | guess it's
diseconomies of scale - in the operation of that kind.

It was put in place beginning in ‘77, | guess, as a
trial program, and its cost has increased considerably,
but the provincial grant to that program has been
capped at the same level for the past several years
and in fact the feds are picking up now virtually 85
percent of the cost of that program.

Quite frankly, it seems to me, | have - | hope this
comes neither as a surprise or as a shock to anyone
around the table - a very high regard for the RCMP,
and | think that basically one.provincial police force,
albeit with specialized components, makes a lot more
sense because you have a basic infrastructure in terms
of training, communications, central office, central data,
all the rest of it, and I'm content at the moment.

The feds have been saying for the past two or three
years that they’re going to be doing an in-depth across-
the-country study of how best to police the reserves,
and they haven’t really come up with something. | think
all that can be said is they can certainly do a heck of
a lot better job than they've been doing in terms of
the federal responsibility for policing on the reserves.

But | would hope that one of the components that
is kept in place is the utilization of the 3B RCMP
constables for policing in those circumstances.

MR. J. DOWNEY: I'll just come back, Mr. Chairman,
to say that | think if you're dealing with it and asking
for my recommendation, if the people in that community
had - and | think the people on the Indian reserve would
agree as well - that if you're going to have the backup
of the RCMP anyway, then work in a program that
maintains the presence of the RCMP in Reston, with
the full complement of RCMP working with the DOT
officers there, and you may see a reduction in numbers
of DOT police officers and maintain the backup of RCMP
in Reston. That’s the common-sense approach, and |
would hope that the department would be prepared
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to look at it and proceed to take action before too long
on it.

HON. R. PENNER: Okay.
MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, | almost hesitate to
ask this question, but could the Attorney-General
indicate whether they’'re looking at any other
detachments for closure in the future?

HON. R. PENNER: I've had no recommendations for
closure from the RCMP, and accordingly - although it's
implied, let me make it explicit - | have nothing under
consideration.

MR. G. MERCIER: That's for this total fiscal year?

HON. R. PENNER: Yes.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, have any decisions
been made - as | understand it, the decisions on
manpower are made a year in advance?

HON. R. PENNER: Technically, it should be 18 months
in advance. The requirement of the contract is that any
changes given in October of one year for the beginning
of the fiscal year two years down the line.

MR. G. MERCIER: Could the Attorney-General indicate
what, if any, changes there will be in manpower in
Manitoba?

HON. R. PENNER: There are none that are currently
in contemplation. We had been discussing with the
RCMP the addition of some specials to the 30 that we
have. We wanted to effect, in a sense, a two-for-one
exchange, that we would be prepared to see if we could
squeeze out a few of the regular members, say three
or four, if we could get eight 3B’s in exchange. That
had been approved in principle prior to the last federal
election, but subsequently, when the screws were being
tightened, Federal Treasury said no. If they did it all,
it would be a one-for-one, and we didn’t feel we had
enough available regular members to squeeze out of
the establishment to make that deal.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, the Supplementary
Information indicates that the Minister will be
contracting with appropriate communities for extension
policing services subsequent to the release of the 1986
official census data. That data, | expect, will show a
reduction in population in a number of rural areas.

Could the Attorney-General indicate what the effects
of these new contracts will be?

HON. R. PENNER: Tentatively, the indications that they
have and are considering is that under the present
formula, in all likelihood, Emerson - and you know
there’'s been some discussions about whether Emerson
is 750 or 756, or if you stand on a corner and count
on a rainy night, 742. But it's clear, from the ‘86, that
it's fallen below the 750, so its obligation for policing,
if that is right, would disappear.

2261

There are two communities, | think - Hamiota and
Treherne - that have gone above the 750, and according
to the existing formula would be obligated to enter into
a contract for one policeperson in those two
communities. Those are the only three communities
that appear to be affected by the census.

MR. G. MERCIER: There's a reference here to
reallocating existing police resources to meet the needs
of northern communities. What does that mean?

HON. R. PENNER: What that has meant in fact is the
new assistant commissioner is looking at more
efficiencies, for example - and I'll give you the exact
details in a moment. We served a number of
communities out of Lynn, so you have a big enough
detachment so that you could fly them into X, Y and
Z from Lynn. It seems more efficient if you serve some
of them out of Thompson so we moved some from
Lynn to Thompson. That's the kind of . . .

MR. G. MERCIER: You're just talking about reallocating
existing resources in Northern Manitoba, not adding
to them.

HON. R. PENNER: Essentially, that is right.

MR. G. MERCIER: What is a pilot auxiliary policing
project?

HON. R. PENNER: This is a project which is under
consideration pursuant to which persons can volunteer
to be an RCMP auxiliary. They're not paid and they do
not serve on their own. They serve as a backup or
assistant to a regular member, might, for example, be
in a cruiser car with a regular member so that if the
regular member has to go from the cruiser car to carry
out some policing duty, the auxiliary could, if on duty,
sit there and take messages or assist in some way but
never policing on his or her own. The only provincial
cost would be an initial cost for a uniform and some
training and after that the auxiliaries serve gratis.

MR. G. MERCIER: Who started this or who asked for
this project?

HON. R. PENNER: Now in about three, four provinces;
perhaps B.C., Alberta and Newfoundland, | think about
three, and others are considering it.

MR. G. MERCIER: Where is this going to done in
Manitoba?

HON. R.PENNER: Wehave no decision, but the RCMP
itself would be the ones, if, for example, we agreed.
Let me take a number that has been discussed, that
50 auxiliaries is what we could probably afford and the
RCMP would decide where they can use them best.

MR. G. MERCIER: That will take place this year?

HON. R. PENNER: | hope so. It's under consideration,
it's under active consideration.

MR. G. MERCIER: How long is it referred to as a pilot
test?
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HON. R. PENNER: | think that something like that you'd
want to try over 18 months, two years.

MR. G. MERCIER: There’s also reference to negotiating
a new contract with respect to the 3B Indian Special
Police Constables. Is the contract up or what are we
looking at there?

HON. R. PENNER: With respect to, you mean the
master contract?

MR. G. MERCIER: Yes.
HON. R. PENNER: No, it's not up until ‘91.

MR. G. MERCIER: This is in reference to the 3B Indian
Special Police Constables.

HON. R. PENNER: No, I'm not aware of any
negotiations presently taking place with respect to 3B.
Is there a reference in the . . .

MR. G. MERCIER: Yes, page 54, it says negotiated
new contract with respect to RCMP/3B Indian Special
Police Constables.

HON. R. PENNER: Oh, | think that's RCMP/3B. Both
are matters that are under consideration. With respect
to RCMP, although the contract doesn’'t run out until
‘90-91, we have urged upon the federal Solicitor-
General, as have other jurisdictions incidentally, that
we begin negotiations now, recognizing how tough those
negotiations were last time around. The reference to
negotiating with respect to 3B is something | referred
to a short time ago when | talked about our pressure
on the Federal Government to look at the whole area
of Indian policing. There are several components to it,
and the feds said, okay, we’'ll do a national study and
we're still waiting for the study to use that as a
springboard for some negotiations.

For example, it seems to me from my own recent
experiences in the North that one of the primary policing
needs, since we cannot possibly have a detachment
on every reserve, is to increase the Band Constable
Program both in terms of numbers, in terms of salaries,
in terms of training and in terms of backup. That is
something we very much want to do, but that would
be - if we could convince the feds - entirely a federal
cost program.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Arthur.

MR. J. DOWNEY: Mr. Chairman, | ask the Minister,
dealing with an Order-in-Council - and this again was
something that | find interesting when he’s saying that
they’re out of money for RCMP support and protection
of people in Manitoba - and I'm not saying that I'm
opposed to what the money was used for. Why was
his department called upon to provide $20,000 in an
Order-in-Council dated December 17, 19867 That's
$20,000 out of the Law Enforcement Provincial Police
to go to the grant to the Indian Council of First Nations
of Manitoba to prepare for and make representation
to the 1987 First Ministers’ Conference on aboriginal
matters. Why was it drawn from this department? Why

was it not taken from the Department of Indian Affairs
or some other department? Does he have a surplus
of funds in his department, is that why it was drawn
from there?

HON. R. PENNER: No, no, that's in fact not what
happened. What happened is that during the course
of the year, since | was the Minister responsible for
Constitutional Affairs, including the ongoing aboriginal
constitutional discussions, the grants that were made,
were made during the course of the fiscal year, and
we had no specific appropriation in the department.
Treasury Board directed that we encumber funds within
departmental appropriations pending the disposition
at year-end of the source of funds. The only sizable
appropriation that we had was the Law Enforcement
- that being the biggest - so we simply logged it there
partly in expectation that there might have been, as
there had been in previous years, a surplus there. As
it turned out, in fact, there wasn’t; it was the opposite
of a surplus in that appropriation. So that at the end
of the fiscal year when we got our supplementary as
we did, we got a supplementary that covered those
grants.

MR. J. DOWNEY: Were there any other grants taken
out of this department, or this appropriation for other
purposes?

HON. R. PENNER: Yes. There were a couple for the
same purposes and, if I'm not mistaken, one was given
to Rosaire House in The Pas for IPDA lockups. The
reason for that is in fact it is in effect an RCMP
expenditure, because most of the IPDA facilities in the
province are RCMP lockups. The RCMP lockup fellinto
such a state of disrepair or inadequacy in The Pas that
it could no longer be used and the RCMP are building
a new detachment. Pending the completion of that
building, we are using Rosaire House and have to pay
for it.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 4. (a)—pass.
4.(bX1) - the Member for St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: There’s indication that there's a
research analyst in Law Enforcement. Who is that?

HON. R. PENNER: J. Roy, a research analyst.
MR. G. MERCIER: Is that a new position?

HON. R. PENNER: It was a new position last year.
September 1, 1985, was when that position was
established.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for Arthur.

MR. J. DOWNEY: Is that person’s job the one to draw
up the recommendations dealing with the changes to
the RCMP detachments?

HON. R. PENNER: No, that is not the main function
of that person. The most recent function of that person,
just to give you an example of the kind of things, in
this case what she is expected to do was the roadside
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ALERT Program that we ran jointly with the feds. She
organized it and she’s the one who’s working under
the director of Law Enforcement, is building our data
base with respect to time stats and so on.

MR. J. DOWNEY: The reason | ask, because she was
involved in the two meetings that took place in Deloraine
and Reston, I'm sure, and | wondered if she’s compiled
the data that the decision was made on.

HON. R. PENNER: She assisted in the compilation of
some of the data subsequent to the making of the
decision, but certainly not leading to the making of the
decision.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: The annual report indicates that
this area investigates applicants for security guards or
private investigators. How many were turned down last
year?

HON. R. PENNER: The nearest estimate | can give is
that we approved through that particular unit
approximately 1,400 private investigators, security
guards each year, because they're licensed at a year
at a time. Basically, it’s our estimation that we probably
turn down about 5 percent. They don’t come directly
to us. They come from the companies and do whatever
is required to be done; and then we notify the companies
that X or Y or Z is unacceptable, and they do the formal
turning down.

MR. G. MERCIER: It seems to be a pretty high number.
For what reasons are they turned down?

HON. R. PENNER: Usually, but not always, criminal
records.

MR. G. MERCIER: If you have any criminal record,
you are turned down?

HON. R. PENNER: No, | think there would have to be
something which would lead us to believe that the
person may not, at that particular stage, be one that
ought to be entrusted with that particular degree of
responsibility. It would have to Criminal Code, indictable
usually.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 4.(b)(1)—pass; 4.(b)(2)—pass.
4.(c)(1) Police Commission: Salaries - the Member
for St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: How many appeals did the
commission hear last year?

HON. R. PENNER: | think probably a half-dozen, in
that order, not too many more. But you must remember
that when those appeals are heard, some of them take
a pretty fair amount of time and workout. But in terms
of that branch of the Folice Commission’s work, | don’t
have the figure immediately handy. | can haveit. | know
| received the draft of their annual report just within
the last couple of days, so | can give you that tomorrow,
but | think it's about half-a-dozen of appeals.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, it would appear that
the bulk of the work of the Police Commission relates
to crime prevention programs with the appointment of
The Crime Prevention Foundation Act to be passed
through this Session of the Legislature. Obviously
there’s a fair bit of duplication. | would expect there
would be a plan to have the Crime Prevention
Foundation assume much of the responsibility of the
Manitoba Police Commission.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, the point is well taken. It's
expected, to the extent that the Manitoba Police
Commission carries out a Crime Prevention Program
- and it still does but not in a major way - with the
coming into existence of the foundation and the centre,
that basically the locus of crime prevention would move
from the Manitoba Police Commission to the foundation.
That means that the overall mandate of the commission
will change in terms of priorities. For example, of
increasing importance to the work of the commission
is beginning to look at things like a protocol with respect
to the handling of sexual abuse victims. The commission
has been working on that in a very consultative way
for the past several months, a protocol with respect
to high-speed chases. The commission has been
working on that for a considerable period of time.

Indicators for police recruitment and training, and
they’'ve been working on that for some period of time,
and indeed, in order to enhance the function of the
commission in dealing in that area, we’'ve changed the
staff for the Manitoba Police Commission, increased
it. We've had, as an acting executive director, the former
assistant commissioner of the RCMP, Sandy McHaffie,
is the Acting Executive Director of the Manitoba Police
Commission to indicate the direction of the work of
the commission in that area. So basically we have, as
| say, put some staff in position on a term basis and
hope to be able to establish the position, to have people
like Sandy McHaffie and former Assistant Commissioner
and former Inspector Ray Johnson as part of the team
assisting the commission in the development of those
kinds of initiatives.

MR. G. MERCIER: Wouldn'’t it make sense to, when
the Crime Prevention Foundation is in place, put all
the crime prevention activities there and do away with
the commission, and put the police activities under the
Law Enforcement section, and the only thing remaining
would be appeals and to give some other body the
appeal authority?

HON. R. PENNER: In fact, what has happened is that
the mandate, certainly the priorities of the Manitoba
Police Commission has changed very considerably in
the last few years.

We are doing now much more departmentally than
was previously the case with the appointment of Charlie
Hill as director of Law Enforcement Services. We've
built up that section of the department where Charlie
is director; Des DePourcq, formerly of the Winnipeg
Police Department, in Firearms; Bill Hanson is still there
in Investigation; J. Roy, analyst, and they're carrying
out a number of the kinds of functions departmentaily
that | have indicated.

The Crime Prevention function of the Manitoba Police
Commission has gone down and its residual work, which
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was carried out by Officer Ollie, Lorne Gregorash will
move over to the foundation. It’s still you see, by statute,
has a statutory function with respect to appeals. It may
be that down the line what you’re suggesting is what
happens, but at the moment we think there is a
continuing mandate in the areas that | suggested.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 4. (c)1)—pass; 4.(c2)—pass.
4.(d) 1) Law Enforcement Review Act: Salaries - the
Member for St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: Is there an annual report for this
section?

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, there is an annual report. Just
bear with me for a moment. I'll provide the member
with these figures, but I'll give them at the moment.
Comparing’85, which I'm not sure, it might have been
a partial year; ‘86, total representations made to LERA
in ‘86 were 179, compared to 167 the year before;
complaints refused, 84, compared to 55; complaints
accepted, 95, compared to 112; so the number of
complaints accepted in ‘86 went down by about 15
percent. So you ended up dealing through the year
with 95 complaints. Disposition, indicated in the figures
that | have, with no further action, 43 of those 95;
withdrawn, 18; informal resolution is where we really
put the emphasis, 22; referred to the board, 10;
admission by the officer, 1. So we've got, of the total
intake, starting with 179, we ended up with 10 matters
being referred for adjudication.

MR. G. MERCIER: Since the agency came into effect,
has there ever been a finding against an officer of having
committed a disciplinary default?

HON. R. PENNER: | think in all of that period of time,
the only formal disposition has been the one that |
referred to, an admission by an officer, one, but that
has to be seen in the context of, in the two years, some
47 informal resolutions. The informal resolutions mean
that both the citizen and the officer were satisfied by
some meeting, some apology, some explanation. That's
what we really anticipated, that we would be providing
a means of letting the citizen feel that he had an
opportunity to deal with the beef and a way in which
police officers could have beefs of that kind dealt
without being feeling threatened and intimidated in their
own jobs and duties.

MR. G. MERCIER: What is the commissioner receiving
this year?

HON. R. PENNER: His salary?

MR. G. MERCIER: Yes.

HON. R. PENNER: 67, something like that. Seventy,
is that it, is that his salary? His salary for the fiscal
year that we're discussing would be 77 - $77,100.00.
MR. G. MERCIER: $77,000.00.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, $77,100.00.

MR. G. MERCIER: Mr. Chairman, | think there would
be a number of people who would make the argument

that this is a pretty expensive procedure to end up
with. The Minister says there may be one admission
of fault, no other findings against any officer of
committing a default. It would appear that there are
a lot of groundless accusations made against members
of the Police Department. Does the Minister really think
that the expenditure of some $126,000 - particularly
with a Chairman earning $77,000 - is justifiable?

HON. R. PENNER: | think one first of all has to measure
the cost in terms of the role that LERA plays in the
totality of things. | think it's very important to have an
independent law enforcement review agency. The
deputy just suggested to me sotto voce, but | think
he’s right so I'll put it on the record that this is probably
the cheapest law enforcement review agency in the
world.

It certainly is not considered in terms of the figures
that we have for the operation for example of the
Metropolitan Toronto. The budget for the Metropolitan
Toronto operation is in excess of $1 million, if I'm not
mistaken. One has to of course, take a look at the
Toronto population - that's true - but they have 17
investigators alone in the Toronto operation. But'’s it
way out of proportion to our costs.

Secondly, when we established it, it was a genuine
concern on the part of the police that the agency might
turn into some thinly disguised unit for attacking the
police. We took some pains to make sure that a senior
person occupied the chair in its inception. And we hired
probably at a higher level than might otherwise be the
case. It might be the case, we're looking at some
options, anticipating a possible retirement of the existing
commissioner that would see the cost of the managerial
end of it go down.

What | think the case is as well is that in effect it’s
been fairly low profile. The agency hasn’'t been out
there drumming up business, nor indeed do | think it
should be in the situation of drumming up business.
But in terms of its location vis-a-vis the central focal
point for police activity and so on, it's not a high-profile
operation. | think that we ought to continue operating
LERA. I'm satisfied that it is doing a job, that a lot of
the complaints that we heard loudly and worryingly
about the lack of such an independent body, we don't
hear them anymore. There’s general acceptance by the
police of the agency, some criticisms from time to time,
that’s inevitable, but we’ll continue to monitor the
operation, try to make economies if we can. But | think
it fulfills a useful function and is not really, globally
speaking, an expensive operation.

MR. G. MERCIER: The agency only has jurisdiction
with respect to the City of Winnipeg Police Department
and other municipal police departments. There were
some discussions a number of years ago about the
way in which complaints against members of the RCMP
were dealt with. Could the Attorney-General indicate
how that has been resolved?

HON. R. PENNER: They finally, after God knows how
many years, passed the legislation to establish what
seems to be quite a parallel sort of operation in terms
of a body to which complaints can be brought, but the
Federal Government hasn’t proclaimed it. And that’s
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one of the issues that we’ll be discussing with the
Minister of Justice and the Solicitor-General in the near
future.

They’'ve appointed the person, Ray Morran in fact
who will be heading it. So they’'ve gone that far and
earning $125,000 a year so, we're cheapskates. But
they do recognize the importance of having such an
agency and we’'ll be glad to see it.

MR. G. MERCIER: There still is an existing system
though for dealing with complaints against the RCMP.

HON. R. PENNER: It's entirely internal and when |
receive complaints, as we do from time to time, not
all that frequently, they’re immediately referred by me
to the RCMP | receive a report in writing and it's
subsequently discussed verbally in our regular meetings.

MR. G. MERCIER: Have there been any findings of
fault against members of the RCMP serving in
Manitoba?

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, and in fact not too long ago
a particular incident in The Pas led to criminal
proceedings.

MR. G. MERCIER: How many findings of fault have
there been . . .

HON. R. PENNER: 'I'll have to take that as notice. We
don’t keep those statistics basically.

MR. G. MERCIER: So you refer to criminal proceedings
though, but the Law Enforcement Review Agency
wouldn’t full show in their statistics, and there have
been those with members of the City of Winnipeg Police
Department.

HON. R. PENNER: You're talking about the RCMP,
right? And the question is, how many findings of fault
have been made by the internal process in the RCMP
in the last year. We'llget those figures for you precisely
either, well not later this afternoon, but tomorrow.

MR. G. MERCIER: Those wouldn’t refer to criminal
proceedings?

HON. R. PENNER: No. | just mentioned as an aside
that in fact one incident up at The Pas was serious
enough to warrant criminal proceedings.

MR. G. MERCIER: Pass.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 4 (d)(1)—pass; 4.(d)(2)—pass.

Resolution No. 20: Resolved that there be granted
to Her Majesty a sum not exceeding $32,019,000 for
the Attorney-General, Law Enforcement, for the fiscal
year ending the 31st day of March, 1988—pass.

Do you want to begin the other section?

That's 5.(a}1) Salaries - the Member for St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: Pass.

MR. CHAIRMAN: 5.(a)(1)—pass; 5.(a)(2)—pass.
5.(bX1) - the Member for St. Norbert.

MR. G. MERCIER: There’s a note on page 63 here,
staff-year transferred from rural courts. Is that a change
in the format of the budget to have federal courts and
then to have, later on in J, rural courts?

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, it is a change. It’s an
administrative change pursuant to which we wanted to
give more management and assistance to the
functioning of the rural courts.

MR. G. MERCIER: What do you include in the rural
court? You're talking about the rural Court of Queen’s
Bench, is that what you mean?

HON. R. PENNER: All courts outside of Winnipeg, so
they have their own administrator.

MR. G. MERCIER: Provincial and federal.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, that’s right. We do try to blend
the administrations.

MR. G. MERCIER: What'’s the reason for doing it that
way?

HON. R. PENNER: |t really is efficiency, in the sense
that there is one central manager for all of the rural
courts offices and it includes the provincial courts and
the Court of Queen’s Bench, instead of them responding
to be in rural courts to a number of individuals.

MR. G. MERCIER: Has that resulted in anycost saving?

HON. R. PENNER: Optimistically, we hope that it will
but there is certainly no cost increase. I'm advised by
my Deputy and the Director of Administration that we're
seeing more consistency in the way in which the courts
are being managed.

MR. G. MERCIER: Can the Minister advise as to the
status of the Construction Program?

HON. R. PENNER: On schedule. | expect that the
construction and reconstruction will be completed at
the end of the summer, September, but then there’ll
be a period of some months for furnishing and getting
ready for the move. | think we're looking at - what? -
about April 1, perhaps a little earlier for the actual
move.

The actual completion of the construction will be some
time in September. The move is very complex, and it
will take three or four months. The Great Library has
to be moved back, and then we take the space that’'s
freed up in the new Provincial Courthouse where part
of the Great Library is, and we set that up for the
provincial judges. The logistics of it are beyond my
competence.

MR. G. MERCIER: Just to get an understanding. The
Land Titles Office will be completed. That's to be
occupied by Queen’s Benct. judges.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes, those are judges’ chambers.

MR. G. MERCIER: That's to be done by September
1?
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HON. R. PENNER: Basically the physical end of it will
be completed.

MR. G. MERCIER: As part of this process, you have
the Provincial Judges’ Court moved from Broadway
into the new building?

HON. R. PENNER: Yes. At the end of the process, the
Provincial Judges’ Courts in the Public Safety Building,
the Provincial Judges’ Court on Broadway, and | think,
the Provincial Judges’ Courts, Donald and out at Fort
Osborne, Tuxedo, all move into the new building.

MR. G. MERCIER: Then who willmoveinto Broadway?

HON. R. PENNER: We're looking at the use of
Broadway, probably the creation of a Summary
Conviction Court there that might, for example, deal
with by-law matters, be a by-law court.

MR. G. MERCIER: All of the former Juvenile and Family
Courts that were out on Fort Osborne will be moved
downtown to the new building, a tremendous
improvement. The Minister is indicating ‘‘yes’’.

HON. R. PENNER: Yes.

MR. G.MERCIER: What happensto that facility? | take
it they’ll bulldoze it down.

HON. R. PENNER: We'd gladly abandon it to the
Minister of Government Services who isn't here. | want
to tell you that is a place of historic importance. | want
to tell you that in 1942 | did my basic training in the
Army out there. You can still see the blood and the
agony and the sweat on some of the remaining walls.

MR. G. MERCIER: There are Probation Services out
there too. Will they be moving? How will that work?
Will they somehow be located downtown?

HON. R. PENNER: Because the Youth Centre is still
there, there’ll still be at least one component of
Probation Services.

MR. G. MERCIER: They were alsoinvolved in the Young
Offenders proceedings down . . .

HON. R. PENNER: Yes. There are downtown offices,
adult probation. To the extent that there’s any adult
probation out there, it'll be moved downtown.

MR. G. MERCIER: So the use of 380 Broadway is not
decided upon?

HON. R. PENNER: A number of options, we really do
need a facility for the Chief Medical Examiner, that's
one possibility. The Summary Conviction Court by-law,
again the Donald operation, Highway Traffic might not
go into the Provincial Court Building but into 373.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The hour now being 6:00 p.m,
committee rise.

SUPPLY - COMMUNITY SERVICES

MR. CHAIRMAN, C. Santos: Committee of Supply,
please come to order.

We have been considering the Estimates of the
Department of Community Services. We are now on
Item No. 4.(d) Child Day Care: No. (1), (2), (3) and (4).

The Member for Kirkfield Park.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

| would like to refer back to the situation in the day
care that the Member for River Heights referred to
where the kindergarten children were charged an
enormous amount for . . .

MRS. S. CARSTAIRS: In Carman.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: In Carman, where the

kindergarten children were charged the full amount for

one hour because they happened to be kindergarten

and the regulations said it would be for Grade 1.
Am | correct in that premise?

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Minister.

HON. M. SMITH: Mr. Chair, | did outline the problem
there. The local board has the opportunity to set the
fee. What we do is set the upper limit. In fact, they
had quite a staggered fee. Our upper limits were very
close in terms of kindergarten and younger children.
They had chosen to put in a fair differential.

The reason in the standards that we have different
rates is that the number of staff required is dependent
on the age and therefore the needs of the children.
We give the authority to the board to charge up to a
certain level.

| think there’s about a dollar differential between the
two groups, but they in fact put in a differential of
almost $3.00. So the remedy was within their range of
action. It wasn'’t a direct result of our regulations.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: What | would like to get at, Mr.
Chairman, in this particular area, is this happened -
when you have parent boards, the majority of the people
have children in the upper levels from 1-6. In fact, there
would be nobody representing the kids when they are
first coming in to the kindergarten. There would be
very few representing that area.

What happened in a day care situation in my area
was that the parent board chose to eliminate the K
spaces altogether and just have extra spaces in the
1-6 level where the majority of the parents on the board
were. Now, after a lot of consultation with different
members of the department, we managed to get about
five of those spaces back. But this is the type of thing
that can happen where you have parent boards and
where the majority may represent a certain level.

| wonder if the Minister wouldn’t look into this
situation a little more carefully. Because of the way the
boards are set up, or the majority of the parents, I'm
sure, would be from the 1-6, you're going to get this
kind of situation and this may not be the only area
that this type of thing happens.

| wonder if there are any other areas in the province
that this is happening because of the boards and the
way they are set up and if there isn’t any way that they
could equalize these a little better so that this type of
thing doesn’t happen.
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HON. M. SMITH: Mr. Chair, we, in fact, have not had
this as a regular complaint sufficient to make us change
any of our guidelines. The problem is that the centres
need a predictable revenue so that they have the correct
number of staff available for the number and ages of
children they are dealing with. There are uniform fees
set for less than four hours or more than four hours
per day. The school age, one period of attendance, the
maximum is $4.25; for two periods of attendance, the
maximum is $6.75. For the preschoolers, the maximum
for four hours or less is $5.80. So there is not a great
difference in the ceiling that we put on.

With regard to how the boards handle it, there may
be an occasional situation such as the member
describes, but by far the majority, in fact, as | said, we
haven’t had any other complaints. The parents often
have children of different ages. They also, | think, are
demonstrating a very good capacity to hear the
concerns of one another and to try to arrive at that
which is fair, rather than always just going for what is
beneficial to them that year. After all, each one of them
who has a child or two children in a centre will
experience the different regime as their children age.

So | submit that it’s not appeared to us as a general
systemic problem. If it were coming to us as a regular
complaint, we would see whether there was anything
further to be done; but at some point we have to enable
centres to have enough revenue to plan and to plan
for sufficient staff.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: Mr. Chairman, | won’t belabour
the situation at all. | just think if there is an inequity
like this happening, even though it is one, | believe -
and it’s been brought to the attention of the Minister
that something should be done about it - just because
there are only one or two, | think that's not a very
gracious way to look at it. | think that you go out of
your way to maybe help the exception where it’'s
happening rather than say, oh well, these are the rules.

My next question, Mr. Chairman, deals with the child
care by Sandy and Associates. | believe, when | asked
the Minister yesterday about what care there was for
evening- and weekend-shift workers, if 'm not mistaken,
the Minister answered Sandy and Associates. Before
| realized that this was not a funded centre, when the
Minister gave me the answer, | wasunder the impression
that this is something that was funded. Obviously, it is
not. And they have sent a letter to Family Services
asking for a grant for the child, and because there is
no funding for this type of care, they are not asking
for maintenance grants or across-the-board subsidies.

Has the Minister given any thought, or has the
department looked at the occasional going outside of
their policy, not funding areas such as this, and would
she consider funding parents who need this kind of
support rather than the whole centre?

HON. M. SMITH: Mr. Chair, well, there are two things.
| did give a list of the number of spaces we have
available for extended hours. There are 85 spaces and
they are funded. Then | also referred to child care by
Sandy and Associates where another 10 unfunded
spaces are.

With regard to the question as to whether the funding
could be given to the families to provide more flexibility,

| remind the member that one of the realities of building
the day care system is that there is not enough money
to meet all the needs.

If there was enough money, there might be a variety
of ways that you could build in more flexibility. There
are a variety of tax measures, straight grants and so
on to families that would maximize their choice; but
until such time as the total system is closer to covering
the need, we can only permit it to grow at a certain
rate. It’s all very well to want flexibility for the individual
case, but if you introduce too much flexibility, you then
open the entire system and each of the centres to
accusations of favouritism.

We would love to have the system at a size and
capacity to meet all the needs. We know it isn’t there
yet. The only real solution is going to be to keep the
system growing in the way we have been. As | say, if
we do get a substantial federal initiative, it will help
immeasurably. | think that’s the route to go rather than
to build in so much flexibility at the local level that we
then have the other problem of favouritism.

Sandy and Associates, | understand, has gone to
Family Services, but Family Services has an
administrative grant to use for family day care. They
are doing a pilot on evening care, but they really, |
don’t think, have been able to accommodate Sandy
and Associates for many of the same reasons that we
run into. We're in the process of building. We can only
build at a certain rate and, at this point in time, that
particular service doesn’t qualify.

MRS. G HAMMOND: Mr. Chairman, the Minister has
a copy of the letter that went to Miss Speers of Family
Services, and it indicated that even if they changed to
a community board, it wouldn’t guarantee funding. It
would simply make us eligible for assistance and there
is already a parent-operated day care in our area at
Sir William Osler School which has been trying to obtain
funding for some time. | think since 1984, the William
Osler Centre has been trying to get funding.

I'll read just one more paragraph in. | understand
that. That's why | really didn’t want to get into private
versus community day care, because it's a no-win
situation here. There is one sentence that | think says
a lot. It says, ‘“‘Unfortunately, neither she,” indicating
Sandy and Associates, ‘“‘nor the other parents using
her centre can afford to fund a public service for other
parents by lowering fees. In the meantime, for want of
a better solution, as we understand that you do some
funding for group day care homes, we will refer callers
who need this service to you in their search for after-
hours child care.”

| honestly wish, and it can never be anything more
than a wish, that the Minister would take off the blinders
and take a look at situations where we have care that
is desperately needed and so short of supply as for
shift workers and try and give some flexibility to the
day care system that we have.

| can’t implore enough that this happened. It is so
needed and yet we have a situation where they are not
asking for the moon as far as grants. They don’t want
all the grants. They need some subsidy for parents who
can’t afford to go to this care. It's the ones who can’t
afford it, of course, that are the ones who are being
penalized and having to take lower quality care, possibly
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| should say that this particular responsibility has
shifted over to the Community Social Services, so we’ll
have Aleda Turnbull, the ADM for that area, and Shirley
Smith, who is the director in charge of Family Dispute
Services. But the shift, the organizational shift, had not
occurred at the time that we had finalized the Estimates.
They will be in directly.

Again, | have Ken Gray, who is the director of Admin.
and Finance, not Aleda Turnbull; and Shirley Smith,
who is the director of the Family Dispute Division.

This program has the Family Conciliation Services
of the Family Division of the Court of Queen’s Bench
and coordinates the Family Violence Program for the
province. There has been an increase in this area of
$467,900.00. Of that, $400,000 for Family Violence
Enhancement, $30,000 for Women Human Resource
Centre increase and $37,900 for a general 3.5 percent
increase.

| do have the grant pattern which | can read off to
you. The new Winnipeg shelter - we are planning a new
Winnipeg shelter facility, so there was nothing in the
‘86-87.We have $24,000 for ‘87-88. Again, in a shelter,
we provide the central administrative grant but the per
diems are paid through the social security and there’s
a special grant that will enable centres, if they have
people who are in financial difficulty but don’t qualify
under social assistance. So that is not the total amount
of money that is provided for the operating.

The Immigrant Outreach Program, we have $73,000
in this year and that will be a new program. There’s
the Selkirk Cooperative on Abuse Against Women, a
new satellite shelter model, and it’s $13,000 in the ‘86-
87 and $30,000 in ‘87-88. Again, this is a regional crisis
line as well as a satellite shelter. The funds will go for
staffing the crisis line and the women’s and children’s
support groups.

South Central Committee, and that’s like central
region, Morden-Winkler, and so on, $30,000 in ‘86-87,
and $41,900.00. There have been new program
developments in this region including women'’s support
groups, new careers trainees and plans for a second
stage facility which have required additional resources.

The next area is the Fort Garry Women’s Resource
Centre. There was $30,000 in the ‘86-87. Again, for
Wife Abuse Services, the Fort Garry Women’s Resource
Centre is now receiving core funding under the Human
Resource Centre area. So they have not claimed this
amount for the coming year. So that money has been
reallocated to the Women’s Post-Treatment project.
That is a new project which was not on stream last
year, at least under our jurisdiction. Thirty thousand
dollars has been allocated for this year. It’s an individual
and group counselling program for women who have
completed chemical dependency treatment and are in
need of support to deal with past and current abusive
relationships.

There is a total of, it was $20,600 last year, $44,000
this year, of fee waiver monies that are given to the
different shelters. As | said earlier, this is for women
who are ineligible for social assistance but who are not
in a position often to pay the fee and because of the
nature of the problem - violence - we feel that to add
a financial debt onto their existing problems was not
appropriate, so we did deal with this problem through
this special allocation.

Program grants to the different shelters have gone
from $123,500 in ‘86-87 to $141,400 in ‘87-88. There

are four full-scale shelters currently in operation,
Thompson, The Pas, Brandon and Winnipeg. The
increases reflect a 3.5 percent price increase and 11
percent program expansion to encourage the
development of women’s and children’s support groups.

Non-residential services in urban area in ‘86-87 -
449,500; ‘87-88 - 466,300.

In Winnipeg, there are four agencies which received
funding in ‘86-87: The Manitoba Committee on Wife
Abuse; WISH, or Women in Second-Stage Housing;
Klinic Community Health Centre - Evolve; and Ma Mawi-
Wi-Chi-Itata.

The increases consist of 5.4 percent increase to Klinic,
to respond to the Winnipeg Foundations Diminishing
Grant. They paid a bridging grant to enable that
program to get moving prior to our being able to fully
fund it.

A 3.5 percent cost increase to Ma Mawi-Wi-Chi-ltata
and a 14 percent increase to WISH for outreach
program development.

Program support for the Winnipeg Wife Abuse Unit
- this is in the Public Safety Building - nothing in ‘86-
87; $10,000 in ‘87-88. These funds have been allocated
for a fee-for-service program support. Three staff are
carrying a caseload of 1,000 clients and additional
resources are necessary to maintain the current
standard of service.

Non-residential rural services - the total in ‘86-87 of
219,200; in ‘87-88 of 234,000. We have developed in
the province 21 non-residential domestic assault
programs, of which 16 received funding in'85-86. So
we are experiencing quite a lot of growth.

Funding is being provided in the six rural regions:
Central, Interlake, Eastman, Westman, Norman and
Parklands. Again, in some cases there was a nucleus
of women who were acting as volunteer supports; in
others, the department had to go out and act as a
catalyst to get these volunteer groups going and to get
their plans worked in with the local regional staff.

Family Violence Initiative monies, and an increase of
3.5 percent for ‘87-88, will provide for some stabilization
of program and staffing in most of the centres. There’s
a Family Violence Initiative - zero last year and 250,000
this year. These are funds that were provided during
the Estimates process to provide some enhancement
for wife abuse and child abuse prevention and treatment
initiatives.

Women’s Resource Centres - there was 260,000
allocated in ‘86-87, and 269,100 for ‘87-88. These
include full year costs with a 3.5 percent price increase
for Core Grants to Fort Garry Women’s Resource
Centre, North End Women’s Resource Centre and
monies are included for the proposed establishment
of a women’s resource centre in Thompson.

So the total expenditures in ‘86-87 were 1,665,300
and ‘87-88 - 2,129,300.00.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: | wonder, the Minister mentioned
there would be a new Winnipeg shelter.

Would she elaborate on where the shelter will be and
who it will house?

HON. M. SMITH: We have been aware for some time
that one of the groups, where there has been a heavy
incidence of abuse but where our existing services have
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not been either fully appropriate or sufficient in quantity,
and that is the Native women. We have met with various
groups to try and determine what the next step should
be and have also at the same time got feedback from
them as to the effectiveness of existing programs.

So what we're looking at now is a combination,
actually some accomplishment of revising some of the
current program delivery, trying to improve some of
the cross-cultural sensitivity specifically at Osborne
House. We're looking at one Native shelter in the core
of the city. We haven't a location. We are exploring
with the Department of Housing, who have been very
helpful in the entire development of our Abuse Shelter
Program, to look at whether we can purchase or
rehabilitate the structure. We haven’t a specific location
at this point in time, but that will be the group we’ll
be dealing with.

There has also been interest in the immigrant
community among the immigrant women to develop
some of the services that they might need in this regard.
They are not looking necessarily at a shelter. They are
looking at some of the counselling, cross-cultural
sensitivity education in the field of Family Violence and
appropriate types of service. So that’'s where we are
at in the development with that program. As | say, we
hope to have it up and running during the year.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: Could the Minister indicate the
number of staff - just a minute, it's here. In the
department, | see there is one managerial, which | take
it to be a director, seven professional/technical.

Would the Minister give me an average salary, please,
or maybe could give me the salaries of the professionals
working in the department?

HON. M. SMITH: | think the member asked me for
specifics rather than averages. I’'m assuming that you
could arrive at the average yourself. There are some
variations year by year depending upon transfers in
and sort of adjustments of salaries. The seven that are
in the professional/technical, again, they have different
levels, but there is a 27.5, 28, 42.8, 39.3, 42.8, 44.6
and 27.5.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: | wonder if the Minister could
indicate, the staff at the Committee on Wife Abuse,
would you have those figures and the salary of the
director, if possible.

HON. M. SMITH: Mr. Chair, the way in which we fund
agencies is we agree on a grant level. We do not
determine how many staff they have or what level they
pay them. That is their responsibility.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: Is that public knowledge, Mr.
Chairman? Is it possible to get a budget where we
could find out what the salary or the salaries of staff?

HON. M. SMITH: Mr. Chair, it wouldn’t be appropriate
for us to make those available. We do receive copies,
but they are publicly available at those organizations’
annual meetings, and | would think if the member wished
to approach the agency, it would be at their discretion
to make that available to you.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: Mr. Chairman, | would like to
ask some questions of the Minister about Osborne
House.

Have the MHRC done a feasibility study on Osborne
House, whether it’s feasible to fix it or should they be
moved?

HON. M. SMITH: That study is in progress, Mr. Chair,
and we are awaiting the results to see what the next
step should be with that shelter.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: Osborne House, as the Minister
well knows, | took a tour of it, and the occupancy rate,
| understand, is on an average | guess of 63 percent.
| happened to have phoned today because we were
going to be in these Estimates to find out how many
people were occupying the House at this moment. There
are 11 families in the house that has seven bedrooms.
There is no space for adequate counselling on a one-
to-one basis. They have Child and Family Services
people going in with lawyers, counsellors, outside
agencies and they have one small meeting room. They
often meet in the hallways. There is no quiet space.

What happens to women who go in, in crisis - and
we’re talking about 11 families, we're talking about 11
women, and probably double children, so you may be
looking at 20 to 22 children in that home at the present
time. What are the plans?

| understand that a feasibility study is being done,
but what are the plans for the people in the house now?
Is the government looking to give them some help, a
spot where women can go when they need help and
they are able to at least have some dignity when they
need this help?

| just wonder if the Minister would explain how a
house that has been there for, | think it's 10 years,
physically clean, but just depressing, totally inadequate
today for the kinds of needs, especially when before
the election, the Minister had a campaign of $100,000
on wife abuse and raised the expectations and made
women feel that there was a place that they could go
and have adequate help. Now, the staff, | feel, must
do an unbelievable job under the circumstances.

| ask the Minister exactly what plans, if there has
been anything in the works, that is going to help these
women in Osborne House to have a facility that is worthy
of the kind of needs that women have?

HON. M. SMITH: Mr. Chair, the Osborne House was
developed years ago by that organization that’s
identified women’s needs and tried to meet them over
the years - the YWCA.

In the time when they were initiating this type of
program, there was no public money other than what
could be got through the United Way funding and, over
time, our government, Provincial Government, listened
and started to provide some funding. Now the
development of provincially funded services in this area
is relatively new.

One of the things that was happening, when we tried
to take a systematic look at services for family violence,
and specifically for women and children, was that there
were a few short-term funded shelters from short-term
federal grants and they would often be funded at a
relatively high level, but there was no continuity. There
was virtually no attempt to develop services across the
province to network the volunteer groups with the staff
in the regions or to do the follow-up development that’s
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so essential. Because, after all, a shelter is an emergency
service; it's not meant to be a long-term placement.

So looking at all of these factors, our department,
our government, undertook the initiative in family
violence. We started out with a heavy public education
campaign to alert the community to the horror that
really lay behind a lot of this violence to sensitize the
community to the point where we could actually try
and shift community values, where this would no longer
be tolerated. We knew there was some risk in going
that route before we had a whole lot of services
prepared.

It's been our belief all along that many of the best
resources for women in need are in fact their friends
and neighbours and families, and that in the long run
it's probably going to be a changing of the community
values and the tolerance for violence and the supportive
roles that community members can give individuals that
will provide more of a prevention or solution than any
number of emergency programs that we can put in
place.

However, we did, as well, start to develop the first-
stage response. We worked with the community groups,
women’s groups, who had on their own been delivering
voluntary crisis phone response and initial counselling.
We worked with those groups, funded them, but gave
them funding only after and if they would work with
local regional staff to come up with a shared plan.

There was resistance at this approach initially because
many of the women felt that staff had never understood
their problem in the past. There had never been a
government response and there was a certain amount
of alienation, not strange to an emerging social service
area.

However, the message we delivered back to them
was that if in working together with regional staff, they
weren’t able to sensitize and develop a cooperative
approach among staff, we wanted to know about that
because we laid the expectations on our local staff in
Health and Community Services that they be responsive
to the changing needs in the community and that they
work cooperatively with them.

I'm happy to say that the existence of the 21 funded
groups throughout the province is a result of that type
of approach. So, in a sense, we've taken relatively small
resources and multiplied their effectiveness by requiring
that kind of cooperation.

Then we looked at the shelter system and we did
have a network of safe homes that we were trying in
the rural area. Some of them have worked for a time
but don’t seem to provide a full response. We didn’t
want to multiply the number of costly shelters until we
had got other parts of the program in place. We did
hold the line at four for a couple of years, but worked
on the second-stage housing, because, in the long run,
you can only give emergency short-term care in a
shelter. They never were meant to be palaces. They
are refuges and what we wanted to do was have
somewhere people could go if they in fact could not
resolve the situation and go back home to either a
reconciliation or a home setting where the abuser had
been removed by the court or some other option that
was within the individual’s inventiveness to find.

What we knew some of the women needed was a
second-stage housing location and, in fact, there have
been groups like WISH who have done some innovative

work in developing that. We have also found the
Department of Housing extremely cooperative. They
have been willing to look at the inclusion of second-
stage housing in all their new public housing or social
housing developments and, indeed, to review whether
some suites could be delegated with local support
systems in existing housing. So that has been the focus
up until now.

We are now at the stage where we can see the
expansion of the shelter system, particularly in
Winnipeg. That is why we have budgeted this year for
a new shelter in Winnipeg and for the possibility of a
relocated Osborne House.

The new shelter will be designated for Native women.
Over 50 percent of the clientele at Osborne House over
a year are Native women and we feel that that is the
biggest unmet need. So hopefully some of the space
and service needs will be better met.

Again, as we're finding with child abuse, the quantity
of need, sometimes when you start to provide the
services, it does take quite a while before the need
levels off. We all hope, devoutly, that we are not going
to see continued escalation in this area; but | think the
way we have built the system, virtually from scratch,
Mr. Chair, because no prior government had even
attempted to build a system or acknowledge the
problem as deserving of priority, | think we’ve built in
a responsible way.

There is some extra space available now at Baldwin
House for some of the overflow at Osborne House and
that has been available during the year.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: When the Minister is describing
that the shelters weren’t to be palaces, she’s certainly
quite right. Osborne House is not a palace and what
was adequate a number of years ago is definitely not
adequate today. The home itself is terribly depressing.
| would hope that when they find a home for the Native
women, that they will not be looking at something that
is just to say, “it’'s not a palace; it's a shelter.”

| think when women, whether they be Native, whether
they be white, or whatever, they need something that
is going to allow them a little bit of dignity and some
privacy certainly when they're in a situation such as
family violence. When they reach Osborne House, they
are in crisis.

I would like to ask the Minister that if there is a policy
of 10 days, because women are rarely kept over 10
days; and, if so, who set the policy?

HON. M. SMITH: Well, Mr. Chair, I'm finding it really
very hard to keep my cool over here, being lectured
to about the inadequacy of a program that was non-
existent before we came into government.

| would like to draw the member’s attention to the
fact that it's the Federal Government, in their cost-
sharing for the whole Family Violence Program, that
has limited it and blocked it practically at every turn
and kept it at a welfare level. That's the only type of
cost-sharing that is available

Now many of the women who end up in Osborne
House have not necessarily come from the economically
poorest homes in the city, but | can tell the member
that there is a great deal of housing in this city that
we’'ve been trying our best to either repair or replace
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and gradually build up a stock of affordable housing.
| know my colleague from Logan, the Minister of
Housing, will have a great deal to say about that during
her Estimates, but we’ve been trying to address that
problem at that end.

Osborne House, as | say, is a short-term refuge, and
| repeat, it is not a palace, but to many it has provided
a very important refuge in those early stages. We have
in place the feasibility plan for a replacement for
Osborne House. We have in the budget monies for
another shelter in the City of Winnipeg and, again, one
does not achieve a program like this overnight when
you start from stop.

We would be able to move a great deal more rapidly
in some of these social programs if we got major reform
in the Canada Assistance Plan and the funding from
the Federal Government and if we got major tax reform.
Those are going to be the crucial areas that will affect
our ability to expand in future years.

But let me just tell you the effort that this government
has made towards this entire area. In a few short years,
we have built, as | say, from virtually no program to
quite a broad program. Surely, there is a long way to
go, but | think it's quite inappropriate of the member
opposite, whose party did nothing on these matters
when they certainly were in the public consciousness
when they were in power, to start lecturing us about
not going quickly enough.

The Department of Employment Services and
Economic Security each year, through provincial per
diems for safe homes where there were 3,000 bed
nights, subsidized and sheltered, 12,351 bed nights,
minus the municipal contribution, the total amount that
they have spent is $450,000.00.

Through New Careers, the training program for
workers in Wife Abuse Service Agencies - over two
years they have contributed $853,100.00. The
Department of Housing, in their annual amortization
costs in capital and also operational grants, has put
in $70,000.00.

Program grants through the Department of
Community Services have totalled 1,094,600, for a
grand total, Mr. Chairman, of 2,467,700.00. It's a very
major effort when you consider the economic and fiscal
times that we are in.

Just so that we get some clarity as to the role of
Osborne House - Osborne House has offered in ‘86-
87 a total of 6,888 bed nights. | remind everyone these
are bed nights that are secure. Again, crowding - and
we’re all sensitive to the fact we’d like better
surroundings - but when people are suffering from the
threat of violence, a safe, secure refuge is an extremely
important factor.

The total number of women who have been served
- 541; the total number of children - 715; the average
length of stay is five nights; the average occupancy
rate is 60 percent; that would average out 63 persons.

The Fee Waiver Grant has increased 160 percent
from 13,000 in 1985-86 to 20,980 in ‘86-87. Again, a
very much faster growth rate than the other kinds of
things we’ve been able to afford in the province and
evidence of this government’'s commitment to building
this program.

The Non-Residential Program Grant has increased
180 percent, from $6,000 in'85-86 to $11,000 in ‘86-
87. The Non-Residential Program Grant for ‘87-88 is
$20,000, an increase of 180 percent.

Major program developments at Osborne House have
been in the non-residential area in the past year. The
development of women’s support groups and children’s
support groups have been very successful.

We know that adequate space for these programs
is not available within Osborne House. That is why the
Department of Housing has agreed and is undertaking
a feasibility study of Osborne House. We are working
closely with the Department of Housing to be sure that
study is completed and to explore the next steps.

Again, a great deal has been accomplished in a short
time. Much remains to be done, but | think the effort
made in building this program and building all the parts
of it in a coordinated way, with some equity across the
province, Mr. Chairman. We haven't just focused on
the one shelter that perhaps might have the most vocal
board or support group. We've tried to build this type
of service as best we can across the entire province.

| think, again, 'm proud of what's been accomplished
and look forward to the new initiatives that we have
proposed for the coming year.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: Mr. Chairman, I'm sorry if the
Minister thinks I'm lecturing her. | wanted to make sure
that someone else is aware also of what is happening
in the area of family violence. | also want to mention
that there was a lot of money put into advertising these
programs before the election, that everywhere you
looked, in the Reader’s Digest, on television, there was
$100,000 that went into that kind of service. So when
you go to do that type of thing, then don’t be pained
if somebody suggests you're not moving quickly enough
in an area.

And when you consider that there is only one shelter
in Winnipeg for 600,000 people, then | would suggest
that there’s nothing wrong with me suggesting that you
could move a little quicker in the area of Osborne House
or bringing it to your attention.

| asked the Minister if there was a policy on a stay
of 10 days. I'm not sure that she gave me an answer
to that question.

HON. M. SMITH: The policy of the department is to
try to make it very much an emergency shelter in a
short-term state. | said the average was five days. In
fact, the city in their zoning concerns is very uneasy
if people are there for longer than 10 days, but our
whole approach has been to build up our capacity on
the second-stage housing so that there were a range
of options available and that more of the women could
pass through.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: How many of the women go
directly from Osborne House to the second-stage
housing?

HON. M. SMITH: In Winnipeg, we have a capacity for
32 at WISH and then we try also to access public
housing where that’s appropriate.

MRS. G.HAMMOND: Mr. Chairman, one of the reasons
that I’'m asking about the policy of the 10 days is that
10 days really does not today give the women a long
enough time to be properly prepared to give them a
choice whether to go back to the home that they have
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So, over time, some of that fear and suspicion and
the silences have been overcome by working that kind
of cooperation. It's also changed the sensitivity of all
those paid staff out there, whether they’rein Child and
Family or Mental Retardation or Public Health, because
the Health and Community Service regions have had
to think about wife abuse and not blame the victim or
ignore the problem, as was the pattern in the past.

With regard to the Committee on Wife Abuse, it has
had turnover. It's not a completely strange phenomenon
in a new social service. In some ways, they've been
having the problem of success. | don’t know of any
other social problem that has built up public awareness
and talked government into moving as rapidly as the
Manitoba Committee on Wife Abuse. But in a sense,
they had trouble adjusting to the fact that, having
pushed, pulled, cajoled, and persuaded government
into action, they then were not the only actors in the
field. Some of them still had the idea that they had to
own that whole system out there and, as | say, we
understood that feeling because we had valued their
initiative and the energy and the creativity they’d shown
in dealing with it. On the other hand, we couldn’t just
give them all the money they wanted without planning
at our end.

So we've been working hard with them to develop
a cooperative planning approach and to let them know,
after dialogue and listening, what particular pieces of
the total service delivery we were prepared, in a sense,
to purchase from them and what other areas, if they
chose to go into them, they would have to either do
on a volunteer basis or seek out alternate funding. So
it's been that sort of evolution that we’ve been going
through in our relationship with them.

Most of the women I've known who have worked in
this field are subject to burnout. It's a bit like dealing
with child abuse. It’s a painful, difficult, heart-rending
type of problem. There’s a feeling in a way that if we
only had a lot of money we could solve the problem
over to the other side of how do you really change
people’s attitudes? You know, even money doesn’t help.
To some, it becomes just an insuperable problem, and
they want to get away from it for awhile and regain
perspective and regroup and come back perhaps at
another angle.

| think again, as with any community group that we
fund, | think they should speak for themselves in terms
of how they perceive what’s been going on. We meet
with them often and have done our very best to dialogue
and to share with them as much of our thinking, our
planning, what resources we have, what realistically we
can expect to have year by year, so that they can make
their plans with full knowledge. We don’t always agree,
but | think over time - as | say, | think some of the
problems have been brought about just because of
their very success in sensitizing the community at large
and government and moving us into action.

MRS. G. HAMMOND: Could the Minister give me a
comparison, maybe an approximate comparison, of the
front-line workers’ salaries in comparison with the
salaries that she gave from the department? I'd like
to get an idea of what the people in the front line and
the directors of some of these organizations are being
paid. | believe the director in Osborne House gets

approximately $25,000 for someone who is on call pretty
well 24 hours a day.

Do you have any figures on the salaries that are
being paid to the front-line workers and if there’'s any
consideration, if they’re very low, to giving them the
Salary Enhancement Grants?

HON. M. SMITH: Mr. Chair, | think with all of the
Community Services area, so much of the work started
with people doing it voluntarily; then, as they gradually
expanded it, there often were people willing to work
at relatively lower pay, but the decision as to how much
is attempted and the pay levels that are to be given
are made by those voluntary organizations.

| can truthfully say that the organizations I've had a
lot to do with are so keen to do a great deal that they
often do keep pay levels relatively low. But it's not
through our requiring that, and we try to caution them
to be somewhat more realistic in terms of what they
can bite off.

We do encourage them as well, particularly an
organization like Osborne House which has a connection
with the YWCA, which has never been directly funded
by government other than there was some mortgage
assistance with what was their new building in the late
Sixties. But their programs have been largely funded
through United Way and Foundation and so on, and
membership fees. So it is their policy in terms of what
pay levels they give.

Again, some of the funding assumptions of the
Canada Assistance Plan end up giving us difficulty
because they often assume that only people in the direst
financial need can get help. So trying to get appropriate
cost-sharing there is a problem for us.

We have tried to respond with increases and also
with things like the fee waiver, but | think the agencies
who operate these centres are more appropriately the
ones to go to to see whether they think a Salary
Enhancement Grant should be given.

| suppose that we are always, in a developing
program, torn between the spreading of the program
across the province and the adequate enrichment of
the programs we've got. It's a dilemma for us in day
care; it's a dilemma in this area.

We've tried to, | guess, strike the best balance we
could in terms of available resources, trying to animate
and keep active that volunteer community and at the
same time make available some monies for ongoing
staffing; but the actual decisions, and this is true
whenever we're dealing with community agencies, it is
their final determination how much work they’re going
to attempt and what balance they put between salaries,
operating costs, and supports to clients.

MR. CHAIRMAN: The Member for River Heights.

MRS. S. CARSTAIRS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Can the Minister tell me what occurred in her
department that the manager would, in fact, get a salary
increase of 17.4 percent and the administrative support
would actually get a salary reduction of 39.1 percent?

HON. M. SMITH: Mr. Chair, this area of work has been
developing rapidly and in the ‘86-87 numbers, we
actually had persons who came with a certain salary
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There's also been a concerted effort to see what type
of work activity could carry on within institutions and
also what kind of community work could be done on
day release. I'm prepared to give you some of the
figures, the total hours of work done during the calendar
year ‘86, but | would like to comment first on what has
been going on in one of our northern outreach camps
at Egg Lake.

Egg Lake is a facility for about 40 inmates on a lake
not too far from The Pas. This particular structure, or
set of structures, was very old, a bit of a firetrap, and
we really thought we would have to demolish it and
no longer operate that type of outreach camp where
we were in fact quite successful in finding daily work
for inmates.

However, by working with Government Services, we
did find that we could use the lumber that was being
developed at Bannock Point in the Whiteshell and ship
it up to Egg Lake; and there, by virture of finding a
local builder who was very interested in working with
inmates and who had the particular type of skills that
enabled him to take virtually unskilled workers, and by
a combination of demonstration and encouragement,
used these materials from our own Bannock Point. In
fact, they put together a new heating building using
wood which can be shifted over to gas when needed;
but, basically, most of the time it operates on wood
which the inmates cut and then tend the furnace.

They also built a 40-capacity new dormitory. In the
process, they learned the skills of concrete pouring;
actually it was thoughtthey couldn’t do concrete pouring
because of course they weren'’t skilled. That was the
one part that was contracted out. It was found that
didn’t work and in fact had to be taken down and the
person we had working with the inmates was able under
his guidance to get better quality foundations poured.

I've been up to see the newdormitory and the inmates
take a great pride in it. It’s a sturdy building. It's made
of very practical materials which will stand the hard
wear, but it will give certainly a safer and more attractive
environment for inmates. The pride they feel in having
built it, 'm sure will not only help in their rehabilitation,
but that same spirit will be passed on to later inmates.

The second stage of redevelopment is now going
on. A recreation-kitchen-dining room section is being
developed at right angles to the new dormitory area.
So we hope by the end of this year to be able to
demolish the old buildings and in fact have a functional
prison there.

So that shows what a lot of ingenuity, good will and
cooperation between departments can accomplish.
Within the institutions, and again there are seven
institutions throughout the province, there’s been a total
of over 350,000 hours of work gone into work within
the institution and that is kitchen work, laundry, working
on the grounds and so on.

Through Government Services, another almost
70,000 hours of work, doing brush clearing and so on,
hasbeen carried out; through the Department of Natural
Resources, over 110,000 hours of work; and through
the Highways Department over 45,000 hours of work.
In addition, community projects totalling almost 27,000
hours of work have been developed.

The inmates have been working very hard on building
playground equipment and then go out and install it
in various day care or community centre sites. | have

received many letters during the year indicating the
appreciation of these community groups for this
particular contribution and paying tribute to the inmates
themselves for the way in which they’ve carried out the
assignments, but also for the staff who've worked with
them in this very valuable type of activity.

With the development, of course, of the Milner Ridge
location and the downsizing of Headingley so that there
will be more usable space, we look for continued
development in the educational, vocational, the overall
rehabilitation program.

MR. A. BROWN: Mr. Chairman, it's great if we get
some work out of these inmates and, if they go out
and do work for the community, | think that is certainly
much better than having them sitting around and doing
nothing at all.

My question would be, what is the average length
of a stay in Headingley at the present time, and how
many of these persons would be illiterate?

HON. M. SMITH: Rather than give an average length
of stay, it's probably more helpful if | break it into
components. A third of the inmates are there for less
than 30 days; another third up to 60 days; and the
remaining third for considerably more. As you know,
it's the two years less a day sentences with some time
off for appropriate behaviour in the institution.

With regard to the literacy rate, we don’t have a
precise measure. The provincial measurements run as
high as 20 percent and we get a cross-section of the
provincial population, with some skewing to the less
literate end. So it would be well over 20 percent. That's
using Grade 9 as the standard. There are some other
basic measures of literacy that would be much lower,
basic inability to read and write. But that’s where we
found our basic computer programs that do have basic
literacy skills. There are programs for them and there’s
quite an interest among inmates in using those.

We intend to keep working at that type of program,
because it’s so flexiblein terms of how an inmate spends
his time. If they can go and take advantage of it,
particularly those who acquire a good motivation, they
can make quite a lot of progress even during a relatively
short stay. So we're working hard at developing that.

Another interesting development has been that we
have some educational programs where the modules.
in a sense, breaking down a course into manageable
chunks. A person can start those modules at
Headingley, for example, and then, on release, move
into Red River and pick right up. In other words, they're
transferable and they lead right into the programs that
are developed there. Of course, Red River has been
developing a little more flexibility, too, in terms of the
modular division of the curriculum.

So that's often quite a rehabilitative line because it
gets an inmate charted along a path that offers them
something constructive to do on release.

MR. A. BROWN: So the Minister is saying that 60
percent of the inmates are out within 60 days. | don’t
believe that there is anybody that is being sentenced
that ever stays the full two year period on this. Maybe
they try to escape or something or other and get another
extra charge laid against them. So there certainly would

2280


















Thursday, 21 May, 1987

committees and another 150 to 200 into new
committees.

There are also another 300 volunteers working in
various other community correctionsfacilities. We have
about 20 fee-for-service contracts, whereby Indian
bands and other community groups are involved in
delivering community correctional services. There are
about 10 contracts with individual fee-for-service
workers, most of them working in isolated communities.

The Working Together group have also been active
in helping us to develop open-custody homes.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Item No. 5.(d)(1) Community
Corrections, Salaries—pass; 5.(d)(2) Other
Expenditures—pass; 5.(d)3) Program Development—
pass.

Resolution No. 34: Resolved that there be granted
to Her Majesty, a sum not exceeding $36,500,500 for
Community Services, Corrections, for the fiscal year
ending the 31st day of March, 1988 —pass.

We are now returning to Item No. 1.(a) relating to
the Minister’s Salary - the Member for Rhineland.

MR. A. BROWN: Mr. Chairman, we have reviewed the
Estimates of the Minister’s Department of Community
Services and Corrections, and | must say, Mr. Chairman,
that | am very disappointed in the Minister’s reaction
to the damning criticism as has been outlined by the
Opposition and the various reports that have been
tabled recently.

Mr. Chairman, the Child Abuse Report, the
Ombudsman’s Report, the Child Abuse Registry Report
and the report dealing with the death of Daniel Felix
all confirm the concerns that we have expressed for
a number of years. The Minister is not giving the
leadership and the direction which is required if her
department is to operate effectively and efficiently.

Mr. Chairman, we, the Opposition, have expressed
our concern regarding Community Social Services,
especially concern about the Manitoba Developmental
Centre: overcrowding, understaffing, lack of an
updated physical facility. All of these concerns lead to
an intolerable situation.

The Minister must review her desire to move all
handicapped out of the institutions and place them in
the community. The tragic events leading to the death
of Mitch Gowler makes it imperative that an immediate
review and change be made in policy. This is not being
done, Mr. Chairman. The Minister hasn’t even called
for an inquest into the death - an absolute lack of
responsibility, Mr. Chairman. The Minister does not learn
from tragic experiences; neither does she heed the
criticism that she has been subjected to by press, by
reports, by Opposition and by persons from within the
community.

In the area of Child and Family Services, child care,
as a percentage of the total provincial Budget, has
decreased from 2.03 percent in 1980-81 to 1.82 percent
in 1986-87; yet administration has increased 120.76
percent during that same period of time.

In spite of this increase in administration, we see no
improvement in the administration of this department,
no uniform standards, no direction from the Minister
- a waste of time and money because of lack of
placement for children who require that service.

All of these things contribute, Mr. Chairman, to an
absolutely inefficient system that is unable to provide
for the needs of children. This is why the report on
matters relating to the system dealing with child abuse
in Winnipeg is so critical of the Minister and came up
with 52 recommendations.

Mr. Chairman, all the Minister is required to do is
give sound common-sense direction, provide uniform
standards, provide proper training and job descriptions,
and she will find that much would have been
accomplished, but we will not get that kind of leadership
from this Minister.

Mr. Chairman, every area in this Minister’s department
is in trouble and the problems are increasing rather
than decreasing - increasing, Mr. Chairman, to the stage
where proper placements of children cannot be made.
Children are placed into situations that are dangerous
to their lives.

Mr. Chairman, we have been very patient with this
Minister, but her department, under her guidance, is
deteriorating to the state where we cannot be tolerant
anymore. The Premier should relieve this Minister of
her responsibilities immediately so that a start in
rectifying the damage done to this department can
begin.

Mr. Chairman, | move, seconded by the Member for
Kirkfield Park, that this Minister’s Salary be reduced
to $1.00.

MR. CHAIRMAN: According to our Rule 55.(1), such
a motion must be in writing.
The Honourable Minister.

HON. M. SMITH: Mr. Chair, we've had a really good
go at Community Services. It rather reminds me of the
old-fashioned spring cleaning that | used to carry out
at home. We've shaken and beaten all the rugs, dusted
the pictures, and vacuumed away the dust and
cobwebs. And what do we see? What we see is a
functioning, evolving, flexible house of social services.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Honourable Minister, there is a
motion on the floor. | have to put the motion and then
we debate the motion.

MOTION presented.
MR. CHAIRMAN: The Honourable Minister.

HON. M. SMITH: What we have is a functioning,
evolving and flexible house of social services; simply
put, a system that is in touch with and operating in
touch with the community it serves. Social services’
value and continued healthy existence are solidly based
and assured.

Just as important, we havesocial services in Manitoba
that acknowledge and are built for change. Ours is not
a fixed, rigid system; nor is it based on the government
doing everything from the top down. Instead, the system
is evolving. It's constantly developing.

| think members opposite aren’t happy when they
see a thing change. They can't figure out what was
wrong; why should we change it? We believe it should
change. We think the role of government is to work
with the community, with the community organizations,
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